
SEGA SAMMY’s 

COMPETITIVE

EDGE
EXCLUSIVE
The Entertainment Industry,
It’s a Whole New Ballgame

POINT OF VIEW
Straight Talk from 
the Chairman

SEGA SAMMY HOLDINGS  ANNUAL REPORT 2006

© SEGA









If you aggressively take on a challenge, you can do what others say is impossible.

That’s what we do at the SEGA SAMMY Group.

And if we fail, we use the experience to lead to even greater success.

A work environment that rewards people for tackling difficult challenges.

Outstanding people who are eager to learn from their failures and build on their successes.

These are the SEGA SAMMY Group’s strengths.
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I
n only a year and a half from the 2004 man-

agement integration of SEGA and Sammy 

to the end of the year under review, we made

substantial progress. The SEGA SAMMY

Group has implemented reorganization measures

targeting enhanced management efficiency and 

a stronger operational foundation. At the same

time, to expand our operations in growth fields,

we have invested aggressively, including making

acquisitions.

We have captured and retained the dominant

number one share of the pachislot machine market.

This success is based on unrivaled development

capabilities that have enabled Sammy to launch

highly regarded machines, such as ALADDIN II

Evolution. In the pachinko machine business,

meanwhile, by bolstering our development capabil-

ities, we have enhanced the quality of our products

and obtained more machine approvals, thereby

increasing unit sales and expanding our market

share. In October 2005, we entered a capital and

business tie-up with GINZA Co., Ltd., a developer,

manufacturer, and marketer of pachislot and

pachinko machines, in order to extend our successful multi-brand

strategy from pachislot machines to pachinko machines. Through this

tie-up, we will develop new pachinko and pachislot machines, enhance

distribution networks, and obtain additional machine approvals. 

In the Amusement Machine Sales Business, high-value-added

products that leverage SEGA’s advanced product development capa-

bilities, such as StarHorse2 NEW GENERATION, are storming the

market. We are taking steps to secure our foundation for further

growth, such as establishing a production and distribution system that

can respond smoothly to the demand generated by these hit titles. 

In Amusement Center Operations, we are making steady progress

in developing new markets. In children’s card games, for example, The

King of Beetles “MUSHIKING” and LOVE AND BERRY Dress up and

Dance! are showing dramatic growth in both number of installed units

and number of cards sold. Additionally, we have begun to expand our

amusement center operations from Japan to North America and Asia.

In the Consumer Business, due to rigorous control of schedules

and quality following the implementation of reorganization measures

in development, as well as to the contributions

made by listed subsidiaries SEGA TOYS, LTD.,

Sammy NetWorks Co., Ltd., and TMS ENTER-

TAINMENT, LTD., we have recorded a substantial

improvement in profitability. TMS ENTERTAIN-

MENT, which has been consolidated from the sec-

ond half of the fiscal year ended March 31, 2006, is

engaged in animation planning and production.

As our subsidiary, the company has substantially

enhanced the Group’s animation-related business.

In these ways, we are establishing a foundation

for success in the entertainment industry, which

has moved onto a new competitive stage. With

this strong foundation, we will strive not only in

Japan but also overseas and work to achieve our

medium-term management objectives – ¥1 tril-

lion in sales and ¥200 billion in ordinary income.

Rather than simply pursuing scale and profits,

as a good corporate citizen that makes an ongoing

contribution to society, we strictly observe laws,

regulations and social norms, and strive to build

good relationships with all stakeholders, thereby

realizing sound management and fulfilling our

social responsibilities. We believe that such endeavors are indispensa-

ble for raising our corporate value, and in accordance with this

approach, we have formulated the Group CSR Charter and enhanced

our internal control system. At the same time, we have formulated

our management philosophy – “By providing entertainment filled

with dreams and excitement to people throughout the world, we will

strive to enrich our society and culture.” As a group that grows

together with all of its stakeholders, the SEGA SAMMY Group will

strive to record continued development in global markets, and I

would like to ask for your continued support in the years ahead.

July 2006

Hajime Satomi

Chairman and CEO

Dreams and Excitement 
By providing entertainment filled with dreams and excitement, we will strive to enrich our society and culture.

L E T T E R  F R O M  T H E

Chairman

WE ARE ESTABLISHING 
A FOUNDATION 
FOR SUCCESS IN 

THE ENTERTAINMENT 
INDUSTRY

“

”
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REVIEW
E X C L U S I V E

Driven by dramatic change in the game sector’s operating environment,

Japan’s entertainment industry is undergoing a process of sweeping reorganization.

With trends toward fewer children per family, an aging population, and higher 

development costs looming in the background, the accelerating move toward 

mergers in the industry is tearing down the traditional industry borders.

Who will emerge as number one in the comprehensive entertainment industry?



7ANNUAL REPORT 2006

BACKGROUND OF THE INDUSTRY’S

REORGANIZATION

Japan’s entertainment industry is undergoing

a surge of reorganization that is bringing

down the barriers that have long separated the

traditional industry sectors – game software,

toys, and pachinko and pachislot machines.

That reorganization was triggered by changes

in the market environment stemming from

the trend toward fewer children per family,

which has had a tremendous impact, especial-

ly on the toy sector, including home game

consoles and game software. The scale of the

market for toys, which peaked at about ¥1,130

billion1 in fiscal 1997, had contracted to about

¥950 billion1 by fiscal 2004, keeping pace with

declines in the total fertility rate. 

The rising cost of developing game soft-

ware has also fueled industry reorganization.

Over the past several years, the scale of the

domestic game software market has been

stagnant at about ¥300 billion, while develop-

ment expenses have been growing in tandem

with the increasingly advanced specifications

of game consoles. In this setting, the advent

of next-generation game consoles has been a

powerful force for change. These consoles

will not only display images at substantially

higher resolutions than previously possible;

they will completely change the idea of what

game consoles are capable of. On the other

hand, game producers have to deal with the

urgent task of controlling and diversifying

the risk of burgeoning development costs. 

A key feature of the next-generation game

consoles will be enhanced ability to access the

Internet, and the establishment of entirely

new profit models is expected to take on

growing importance for game producers. 

Moreover, while the market for packaged

game software is sluggish, enhanced IT infra-

structure is supporting the extension of game

platforms beyond traditional formats to

include mobile phones and online PCs, and

this field is increasingly being recognized as a

growth market.

The pachinko and pachislot market, which

boasts a scale of about ¥30 trillion a year, is

also seeing waves of change in the operating

environment. In accordance with the revision

of the regulations pertaining to the Entertain-

ment Establishments Control Law of Japan2,

entertainment value will increasingly be a

requirement for pachinko and pachislot 

machines. As a result, the ability to develop

differentiated machines will become even

more important, and the financial resources

needed to bolster development capabilities

will be indispensable. Also, as it faces a

decline in the number of players, the entire

industry will need to work together and take

steps to increase the number of players, such

as introducing machines which are less

reliant on payout. 

In the face of these dramatic structural

changes in the entertainment industry, the

strategies of the many companies fighting to

survive have certain points in common. One is

to offset rising development costs by enhanc-

ing content value through the use of synergies.

This strategy entails diversifying profit oppor-

tunities by developing the same content in

multiple channels, such as game software,

amusement machines, animations, content for

mobile platforms, toys, and online games.

Another common point is to strengthen oper-

ations in expanding overseas markets. These

common strategies are propelling mergers that

transcend traditional industry borders, and in

this setting a new concept is taking shape – a

comprehensive entertainment industry.

1. Yano Research Institute Ltd.

2. A change in the model testing rules of the Security Electronics and

Communications Technology Association, which are mandatory for 

manufacturers of pachinko and pachislot machines.

FULL-FLEDGED COMPETITION 

FOR CORPORATE SURVIVAL

Full-scale industry reorganization dates back

to about 2003. Aiming to develop “compre-

hensive” offerings, companies have sought

out mergers with partners that could offer

complementary business portfolios.

However, clear differences are emerging in

the areas that will be the keys to the “one

content, multiple use” strategy – a business

portfolio that extends across a wide range of

fields and strong capabilities in each of those

fields. Other conditions for survival include

killer content, rapid decision making, man-

agement strength, financial strength, and the

ability to create synergies. Only companies

with all of these capabilities will be in the

running to emerge as the leader of Japan’s

entertainment industry and, in turn, to stake

out positions of leadership in the widely

anticipated global industry reorganization.

Scale of Toy Market* and Total Fertility Rate
(Billions of yen)

Market scale* (left)

* Domestic shipments (including home game consoles and game software)

Sources: Total fertility rate, Ministry of Health, Labour and Welfare 

population statistics; Market scale, Yano Research Institute Ltd.

Total fertility rate (right)
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That’s right.

In fact, we are the market leader in a wide range of entertainment fields.

And with a rock-solid profit foundation that enables us 

to invest heavily in growth markets,

we’re ready to extend our winning streak far into the future.



AN IDEAL KIND OF ENTERTAINMENT. 

Asano: Recently, children can be seen

having a great time playing The King of

Beetles “MUSHIKING” and LOVE AND

BERRY Dress Up and Dance! at shopping

centers everywhere. Why did they become

such big hits?

Uemura: The King of Beetles “MUSHI-

KING” uses the theme of beetles from the

natural world. Fathers remember being

interested in beetles when they were

young. For example, they can tell their

children about how they raised beetles

when they were kids1. In the same way,

with LOVE AND BERRY Dress Up and

Dance!, mothers don’t just participate in

their children’s play; they really commu-

nicate with their children on the shared

interest in fashion. The key point is that

families can truly enjoy a common topic.

Asano: Adults and children may expe-

rience the game in different ways, but 

they enjoy playing the same game in the

same environment, and they can have 

a great time talking about the game while 

eating dinner. From the point of view of

an entertainment provider, that’s the ideal

situation.

TO SUCCEED, YOU HAVE TO BE

MARKET-ORIENTED.

Uemura: As a developer of two card

games, I can say that I really want these

games to continue to be available so that

the kids who have bought cards can keep

on using them for years. In my mind, just

pursuing quick sales, just selling cards and

then saying “You’re on your own,” is sort

of like double-crossing the kids. In imple-

menting our character strategy, what’s

most important is to continue on in a way

that earns the trust of the market. That’s

why, rather than launching another round

of similar products for the same age

groups that enjoy The King of Beetles

“MUSHI-KING” and LOVE AND BERRY

Dress Up and Dance!, I want to create new

products for new age groups – for age

groups that don’t have their own prod-

ucts. To expand our customer age range,

we have to constantly keep track of what’s

going on in the market. 

PROFILE
Hiroshi Uemura
R&D Creative Officer
Family Entertainment R&D Department
Amusement R&D Division
SEGA CORPORATION

After joining SEGA in 1989, was assigned to 
the Future R&D Division. For about 10 years,
worked on the development of large attractions
for Tokyo Joypolis. Subsequently developed
new businesses for SEGA, such as children’s
games utilizing touch-sensitive displays.
Currently working on production of children’s
card games, such as The King of Beetles 
“MUSHIKING” and LOVE AND BERRY Dress Up 
and Dance!, in the Family Entertainment R&D
Department.
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Hiroshi Uemura
Developer of The King of Beetles “MUSHIKING”

and LOVE AND BERRY Dress Up and Dance!

The SEGA SAMMY Group continues 

to forge ahead in a wide range of 

entertainment fields. One of the 

key driving forces of that progress 

is the outstanding workforce,

which the Group considers to be 

its most important resource.Why 

is the Group’s workforce so strong? 

And what is the Group aiming to

achieve in the years ahead?

FOCUS

SEGA SAMMY’s 

Competitive Edge? It’s

1. Raising beetles as pets is a common Japanese children’s hobby.



Asano: That’s bringing the market into

the development process. Sammy has

done a good job of implementing that

approach. Based on our development 

philosophy – Sammy... the wellspring of

new ideas – we have worked to maintain

an accurate grasp on market needs as 

we continually launch market-leading

products. But sometimes, some of the 

new products that we propose are not

accepted by the market. When that hap-

pens, development and marketing work

together, repeatedly implementing the

PDCA cycle in product development and

examining what needs to be improved and

what elements should be used in the next

versions. We are really implementing 

the vision of our chairman, Hajime

Satomi, who always says “aggressively 

take on a range of challenges, and if you

fail, use that as a platform for future 

success.” Even young employees are

aggressively taking on a lot of responsi-

bility. That approach, in the end, is how

we create innovative products and make

our customers happy, and it raises the

motivation of our employees. It’s the

source of Sammy’s strength.

Uemura: Since the management integra-

tion, SEGA’s development and marketing

departments have been working together

more closely, such as having weekly

interdepartmental meetings. 

Entertainment helps people to dream

and to “recharge their batteries,” but,

unlike food, clothing, and shelter, we 

can live without entertainment, so it 

is absolutely essential for entertainment

companies to create products based 

on inspiration drawn directly from the

market. I used to develop attractions for

theme parks, and I always tried to take

the customer’s point of view. We asked

ourselves what we had to do so that all of

our customers could enjoy themselves,

whether they were good at games or not.

That same approach produced The King

of Beetles “MUSHIKING” and LOVE

AND BERRY Dress Up and Dance!. In our

business, we can’t sell products that aren’t

inspired by market needs. 

PROFILE
Yoshii Asano
Department Manager
Marketing Planning Department
Marketing Headquarters
Sammy Corporation

Since joining Sammy in 1993, has worked in
marketing for the company, which, along with
development, is known as one of Sammy’s
strengths. Currently utilizing more than 10
years of marketing experience in the Marketing
Planning Department, the pivotal department
for Sammy’s marketing strategy. In accordance
with a market-oriented philosophy, is working
on the formulation of marketing plans and the
provision of wide-ranging sales promotion sup-
port, with the goal of making customers and
employees happy. 
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Yoshii Asano
The Man behind Sammy’s Marketing Strategy

All About the People
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THE MANAGEMENT INTEGRA-

TION HAS OPENED UP BROAD

NEW POSSIBILITIES.

Asano: Currently, we face a

problem in the pachinko and

pachislot market, where the num-

ber of players is declining. One of

the reasons is that, as pachinko

and pachislot became more

complicated to play, the market

lost casual players who just

wanted some simple entertain-

ment. So at Sammy, we are ask-

ing ourselves how we can bring

back those casual players that

have left the market, and how we

can attract new players. To do

that, we are advancing our mar-

ket-oriented approach beyond the

existing markets. Casual players

want entertainment value and cut-

ting-edge graphics, and since the

management integration we can

take advantage of SEGA’s

strengths, such as technical devel-

opment capabilities. That’s a huge

plus for Sammy.

Uemura: The management

integration also has tremendous

benefits for SEGA. A good

example is the penetration of

Sammy’s market-oriented ap-

proach. And with clear direction

from senior management, morale

has improved, which has been 

a big gain too. From the view-

point of a developer, if we don’t

know where the company is head-

ed, it’s hard to focus our efforts.

Several months prior to the man-

agement integration, I had the

opportunity to meet with our

chairman, Hajime Satomi, and I

was deeply impressed with his

vision, how it is transparent, fair,

and easy to understand. He met

with about 200 SEGA employees,

and I think that, at the very least,

all of us managers were highly

motivated to start the “new SEGA”

under the leadership of the chief

executive.

Asano: It is easy to understand the vision

of “becoming number one in the enter-

tainment industry.” And it’s a huge plus to

know where we’re headed, and that our

direction won’t change. Right now,

Sammy’s operations are limited to Japan,

but our chairman, Hajime Satomi, has

repeatedly said that we should become “a

global company in games too.” I have

always thought that, to grow further in the

entertainment world, we can’t limit our-

selves to pachislot and pachinko machines.

So that approach really made sense to me.

In a single step, the management integra-

tion with SEGA made that happen.

Uemura: Through the management inte-

gration, everyone at SEGA has started to

recognize how we can use the strengths of

the Group as a whole. Throughout SEGA,

we are thinking about how to advance

the character strategy. For example, how

can we extend the strong characters in The

King of Beetles “MUSHIKING” and LOVE

AND BERRY Dress Up and Dance! through

all of the Group’s channels, including

SEGA TOYS, TMS ENTERTAINMENT,

and Sammy? This is a vitally important

strategy for sustaining the popularity of

our games. By doubling or tripling the

value of a single piece of intellectual prop-

erty, we can substantially boost the

Group’s sales. As a manufacturer too, this

is something that is really worth doing. 

Asano: Last year, Sammy celebrated 

its 30th anniversary with the ALADDIN

World Premiere. The attendees weren’t

limited to pachinko hall operators and 

the media. In a first for the industry,

pachislot fans were also invited, and they

had a great time. The debut of our

ALADDIN II Evolution pachislot machine

is a good example of our ability to con-

duct wide-ranging, multifaceted develop-

ment. Based on the pachislot machine, we

extended our development activities to

simulation game software, toys, amuse-

ment center prizes, and content for

mobile platforms.

Uemura: You mentioned simulation

game software, and in fact, in the fiscal

year ended March 2005, SEGA’s best-

selling game software in the domestic 

An Ideal Kind of Entertainment –  

Children’s Card Games

The King of Beetles “MUSHIKING”

LOVE AND BERRY Dress Up and Dance!

TV animation The King of Beetles “MUSHIKING“

The Legend of the People of the Forest

© MUSHIKING Project /TV TOKYO

© SEGA

The King of Beetles “MUSHIKING”

Battle Venture

© SEGA 2003

LB Style Square LOVE AND BERRY 

Dress Up and Dance! goods
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market was the simulation game software

product JISSEN PACHISLOT HISSHOU-

HOU! Hokuto No Ken based on the hit

Sammy brand pachislot machine. This

software demonstrated how, if you provide

products that the market wants, they will

definitely sell. For SEGA as a whole, this

renewed our appreciation of the impor-

tance of the market-oriented approach, a

benefit of the management integration.

Asano: Frankly, prior to the management

integration, at Sammy we were only

thinking about what we needed to do to

increase our unit sales of pachislot and

pachinko machines. Now however, with 

a single machine, we have started to think

about what the Group as a whole can do

with it. For example, in total pachinko 

hall services, a new field of business, we

are supplying pachinko halls with prizes

based on The King of Beetles “MUSHIK-

ING” and LOVE AND BERRY Dress Up

and Dance!. This is more than just using

popular intellectual property in goods for

sale. Through the provision of those

goods, we are also working to increase

player numbers and, in the end, to pro-

vide support for pachinko hall marketing.

With total pachinko hall services, our

options and ability to influence the mar-

ket have been greatly expanded. And look-

ing ahead, I think it would be great if we

could develop a wide span of these types

of links throughout the Group. 

LINKING HOMES AND AMUSEMENT 

CENTERS, PARENTS AND CHILDREN. 

THIS IS AN IMPORTANT PART OF THE

GROUP’S STRATEGY.

Uemura: Creating synergies from the cus-

tomer’s point of view means that, for

example, when customers are enjoying a

pachislot simulation game, they might de-

cide to visit an actual pachinko hall on the

weekend. Or when they are playing with a

toy, they might think that it would be fun

to go to an amusement center. Motivating

customers in that way is a huge synergy.

We’re looking for more than just the rev-

enue and profit from a single business. Our

business can link entertainment in the

home with fun outside, such as in amuse-

ment centers and pachinko halls. That’s a

very important part of the Group’s strategy.

Asano: That’s right. There was some con-

cern that if we made pachislot simulation

software that could be enjoyed in the

home, customers who enjoyed it would no

longer go to pachinko halls. But actually,

that hasn’t happened; customers are not

satisfied with just the game. By playing the

game, they improve their skills, and that

makes them want to play in an actual pa-

chinko hall.

Uemura: And with market-oriented

development, what’s important is the

change of generations. If you just focus on

your current customers, you end up get-

ting stuck in a rut. Until a few years ago,

that’s where we were in amusement center

operations. They were thought of as places

only for serious players. That’s why we

were so pleased when The King of Beetles

“MUSHKING” and LOVE AND BERRY

Dress Up and Dance! began to draw fathers

and mothers to amusement centers to play

with their kids. That’s great! Children

have memories of enjoying these games

with their fathers and mothers. And then

when they grow up, they’ll bring their

own kids to amusement centers. I think

we always need to consider the next gen-

eration in our business.

WHERE IS THE SEGA SAMMY GROUP 

HEADED?

Asano: At the end of March, it was a year

and a half since the management integra-

tion of SEGA and Sammy. We are already

seeing synergies in a lot of places, but I

think there are still a lot of fields where we

can cooperate even more.

Uemura: That’s right. By concentrating

the comprehensive strengths of SEGA and

Sammy, and providing entertainment that

can be enjoyed by everyone, adults and

children alike, we will be able to create

huge synergies. 

Asano: I think everyone at the Group

wants to extend our operations around the

world and make steady progress toward

the realization of our vision of becoming 

the number one entertainment company

in the world. x

A Showcase of the Group’s Comprehensive Strengths

The Sammy 30th Anniversary 
ALADDIN World Premiere 

© Sammy

In commemoration of its 30th anniversary and the launch of the new-format version of its flagship ALADDIN pachislot machine,

Sammy held the ALADDIN World Premiere at the Yokohama Arena. The event provided a powerful demonstration of the Group’s

comprehensive strengths.

ALADDIN II Evolution,  

Sammy brand pachislot machine

© Sammy
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LOVE AND BERRY Dress Up and Dance!, a children’s

card game, has received overwhelming support from girls since 

it was launched. In March 2006, SEGA began rolling out LB Style

Square, the official shops for the game, in department stores

throughout Japan. These shops offer lineups of original items, 

such as apparel, stationery, and sun-

dries, that incorporate the characters

of LOVE AND BERRY Dress Up and

Dance!. The objective of the shops

is to provide places where girls,

who have begun to take an inter-

est in fashion, and their mothers

can enjoy time together. In the

future, these shops will be rolled

out not only in department stores

but also in shopping centers

around the country. In the fiscal 

year ending March 2007, we plan 

to open 100 shops.

With extensive lineups of original goods, LB Style Square shops propose coordinated offerings to help

girls become “fashionable young women.”

Nationwide Rollout of 
LB Style Square
The official shops for LOVE AND BERRY Dress Up and Dance!

Record-High Revenue and Profit
In the Group’s second fiscal year, ended March 31, 2006, 

the range of initiatives that the Group has implemented pro-

duced results, and each business segment recorded a strong 

performance. As a result, the Group recorded its best results

since the management integration, not only by revenue but 

also by every measure of profit.

Achievement of Profitability in Consumer Business
Following the success of a range of initiatives, such as the

restructuring of our development organization, the sale 

of overseas subsidiaries, and the acquisition of overseas 

development studios with promising intellectual property, 

the Consumer Business achieved profitability in just a year 

and a half.

Stock Split and Higher Dividends
In light of its favorable results, on November 18, 2005, the 

Company implemented a 2-for-1 stock split. In addition to 

a ¥50 per share interim dividend, the Company paid a year-

end dividend of ¥30 per share, an increase of ¥10 per share, 

calculated on a pre-split basis. In this way, we took steps to

aggressively provide a return to shareholders.

Capital and Business Tie-up with GINZA
Sammy agreed on a capital and 

business tie-up with GINZA Co., 

Ltd., in the field of pachislot and

pachinko machines. We have begun

the development of the GINZA

brand, reinforcing our pachislot 

operations and taking a major step

toward the expansion of our market

share for pachinko machines.

TMS ENTERTAINMENT Becomes Subsidiary
On October 7, 2005, TMS ENTER-

TAINMENT, LTD., which had 

previously been an equity-method

affiliate, became a subsidiary after 

we acquired more than 50% of its

stock. By bringing animation-related

capabilities into the Group, we will 

be able to create more powerful 

synergies among the various facets 

of the Group’s content. © SEGA
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Consolidated Financial Highlights
SEGA SAMMY HOLDINGS INC. AND ITS CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES

For the years ended March 31

Millions of yen unless stated otherwise Thousands of U.S. dollars1

2006 2005 2006/2005 2006

Net sales ¥553,241 ¥515,668 7.3 % $4,709,637

Pachislot and Pachinko Machine Business 265,632 280,109 –5.2 % 2,261,275

Amusement Machine Sales Business 71,513 63,305 13.0 % 608,777

Amusement Center Operations 106,246 83,194 27.7 % 904,452

Consumer Business 90,353 65,341 38.3 % 769,158

Others 19,497 23,719 –17.8 % 165,975

Selling, general and administrative expenses 109,868 106,469 3.2 % 935,287

Operating income (loss) 119,144 105,090 13.4 % 1,014,250

Pachislot and Pachinko Machine Business 99,848 103,931 –3.9 % 849,987

Amusement Machine Sales Business 12,177 7,424 64.0 % 103,661

Amusement Center Operations 9,244 5,472 68.9 % 78,692

Consumer Business 1,977 (8,810) – 16,830

Others (1,713) (541) – (14,583)

EBITDA2 140,999 122,764 14.9% 1,200,298

Income before income taxes and minority interests 111,924 89,482 25.1% 952,787

Net income 66,222 50,574 30.9% 563,735

Capital expenditures 37,650 32,468 16.0% 320,507

Depreciation and amortization 21,855 17,674 23.7% 186,048

Total assets 522,914 438,991 19.1% 4,451,468

Total shareholders’ equity ¥316,680 ¥258,954 22.3% $2,695,837

Number of shares outstanding3 (shares) 283,229,476 140,551,522

Yen

Per share data

Net income ¥ 261.06 ¥ 205.27 27.2% $ 2.22

Diluted net income 260.35 200.48 29.9% 2.22

Shareholders’ equity 1,254.14 1,033.96 21.3% 10.68 

Cash dividends 80.00 60.00 33.3% 0.68

%

Gross profit margin 41.4 41.0 

SG&A/ Net sales 19.9 20.6 

Operating margin 21.5 20.4 

Net margin 12.0 9.8 

ROE5 23.0 19.5 

ROA5 13.8 11.5 

Shareholders’ equity ratio 60.6 59.0 

1. Yen amounts have been translated into U.S. dollars solely for convenience at the rate of ¥117.47 = US$1, the approximate exchange rate at March 31, 2006.

2. EBITDA = operating income + depreciation and amortization

3. On November 18, 2005, the Company implemented a 2-for-1 stock split.

4. Per share information calculated as if the November 18, 2005, stock split had been implemented at the beginning of the fiscal year ended March 31, 2005.

5. ROE and ROA for the fiscal year ended March 2005 are calculated using total shareholders’ equity and total assets at the end of the fiscal year. 

6. Sum of pre-split first-half dividend of ¥50 per share and post-split year-end dividend of ¥30 per share.

4

4

4

6
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“We will become the world’s number one 

comprehensive entertainment company.”

The SEGA SAMMY Group is taking on 

the challenge of achieving an ambitious vision,

and the achievement of profitability in the Consumer

Business is proof that the initiatives the Group has 

implemented since the management integration 

are steadily producing results.

Full-fledged competition in the entertainment industry 

is spilling over into entirely new areas.

The SEGA SAMMY Group will use its business

portfolio, the strongest in the industry,

to create synergies and stake out a solid position 

in a new competitive environment.

A Year and a Half since 
the Management Integration

Hajime Satomi
Chairman and CEO

BROADER,

STRONGER,

SOARING
HIGHER

POINT OF VIEW
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A COMPREHENSIVE ENTERTAINMENT

COMPANY

Q: By the end of the fiscal year under 

review, it had been about a year and 

a half since the management integration. Is

the SEGA SAMMY Group becoming the type

of corporate group that you envisioned?

A:The initiatives that we have imple-

mented since the management inte-

gration are steadily bearing fruit, as seen in

the achievement of profitability in the

Consumer Business. Turning around that

business, which had struggled in recent

years, was our most important challenge

following the management integration.

The initiatives that we implemented to

take on that challenge, including restruc-

turing on a global scale, are too numerous

to mention. But the fact that those initia-

tives have paid off, making the Consumer

Business profitable in only a year and a

half, has reinforced my confidence in the

Group’s new start and in the measures that

we have implemented. Plus we are seeing

steady improvement in our profit struc-

ture, with a better balance between the

Pachislot and Pachinko Machine Business

and other businesses, as well as tangible

gains from the management integration in

all of our other fields of business. Over the

past year and a half, we have made huge

strides toward the establishment of a solid

foundation for growth as a comprehensive

entertainment company.

On the other hand, from the perspective

of establishing a commanding presence in

all of our fields of business, there are still

many operational areas that we need to

reinforce and many fields that present

major challenges. In that sense, at this

point we are only about 50% to 60% of the

way to achieving our goal, and we have

considerable challenges ahead.

Q: Would you discuss the 40% to 50% 

of the Company’s objectives that 

still lie ahead?

A: In the Pachislot and Pachinko Ma-

chine Business, Sammy’s exception-

ally powerful development capabilities

have enabled us to secure a dominant top

share of the pachislot machine market.

Our market share already exceeds 30%, so

it is unlikely that this market alone will

provide substantial growth for our

Pachislot and Pachinko Machine Business

over the medium to long term. That’s why

we are aiming to garner a leading share of

the pachinko machine market as well. At

this point, however, we still only have

about 7% of the pachinko machine mar-

ket, so we still have a long way to go. And

our total pachinko hall services, where we

provide peripheral equipment, hall design

services, and prizes, have not yet reached

the point where they can make a contribu-

tion to our profits.

In the Amusement Machine Sales

Business, the high-value-added products

that are SEGA’s specialty are storming the

domestic market. This is a considerable

achievement, but we have not been able

to demonstrate world-leading product

strengths in overseas markets. Even

though our sales in this field are among

the highest of any company in the world,

the majority of those sales come from the

domestic market, and we need to bring

our overseas results up to the level of our

domestic performance. 

In Amusement Center Operations, our

challenge is to improve profitability. In

our children’s card game business, The

King of Beetles “MUSHIKING” and LOVE

AND BERRY Dress Up and Dance! are

highly profitable, but overall the level of

profitability in our Amusement Center

Operations must improve, and we need to

consistently achieve an operating margin

of at least 10%. 

Looking at our listed subsidiaries, TMS

ENTERTAINMENT, which handles the

Group’s animation business, must en-

hance its 3D animation technology, which

will be a strategically important field in the

years ahead. SEGA TOYS is generating a

strong level of profits in a difficult toy

market, but with sales of about ¥14.0 bil-

lion, it faces many challenges in this highly

competitive market. Accordingly, SEGA

TOYS must increase the scale of its opera-

tions. In the same way, in content for

mobile phones and online games, our

operational scale is still too small.

The SEGA SAMMY Group is generating

operating income of more than ¥100.0 bil-

lion a year. But we face a number of chal-

lenges, including those I have mentioned

here. To realize our vision of becoming 

the world’s number one comprehensive

entertainment company, we must success-

fully take on all of these challenges. That’s

why we won’t let up even for a minute as

we continue working to make the Group

stronger.

Q: Currently, companies in the enter-

tainment industry are increasingly

turning to mergers as a means of corporate

survival. In a competitive environment 

that transcends the traditional industry

borders, what are the SEGA SAMMY

Group’s competitive advantages?

A:The entertainment industry has seen

the emergence of an intensely com-

petitive environment, where survival

requires not just technical and financial

strength but also abundant content and

the ability to use that content effectively,

and many companies are using mergers to

enhance their comprehensive strengths.

We have established strong competitive

advantages in a number of areas.

First, our operations, which extend 

to a wide range of entertainment fields,

support the Group much like large

“wings.”Management integrations between

companies that have substantial overlap in

their operational fields can produce syner-

gies in the area of cost reductions; that is,

they can achieve increased efficiency in

back-office operations. However, substan-

tial synergies cannot be expected in sales

and profits, which are the key factors in a

company’s survival in this environment.

The initiatives that we have
implemented are steadily producing
results, but at this point we are only

about 50% to 60% of the way
to achieving our goal, and we have

considerable challenges ahead.



The management integration of SEGA

and Sammy, however, was entirely differ-

ent. We had minimal overlap in our oper-

ations, and through the integration, we

created a powerful business portfolio –

the broadest in the industry – that has

enabled us to generate vast synergies. 

We were able to achieve this right away,

enabling us to make strategic advances

ahead of our competitors. This is one of

our key competitive advantages.

Next, a strong financial position is

needed, not only for the development 

of game software for next-generation

game consoles, but also to support rapid

advances into growth fields. In this area, 

we are far ahead of any other company,

and the reason is our Pachislot and Pa-

chinko Machine Business. Our pachislot 

machine business, where we have a com-

manding top share, and our pachinko

machine business, where our market 

presence is steadily increasing, provide 

a strong, stable financial foundation that

enables the Group to invest aggressively in

growth fields. 

The Pachislot and Pachinko Machine

Business also foster synergies in cost 

competitiveness. In comparison with

pachislot and pachinko machines, where

annual production is in the neighborhood

of one million units, our unit production 

of amusement machines is relatively low,

and if our Amusement Machine Sales

Business sourced its own parts, the 

procurement prices would certainly be

high. But by sharing parts between these 

businesses and implementing joint pro-

curement activities, we can benefit from

substantial cost synergies.

Q: Would you explain why you hold the

position of CEO at SEGA and Sammy

as well as at SEGA SAMMY HOLDINGS?

A:While the management integration

served to diversify our sources of rev-

enue, that in itself does not provide a suffi-

cient level of synergies. Strong leadership is

needed to promote the integration of man-

agerial resources as well as cooperation

among business units. Each Group compa-

ny will remain independent, but I have

been given the responsibility for Group-

wide management and coordination

among the SEGA SAMMY Group compa-

nies. This system will foster a clear, rapid

decision-making process, helping all

Group companies to work together toward

their common goal of fostering synergies.

This system is another key point that dif-

ferentiates the Group from its competitors. 

PACHISLOT AND PACHINKO MACHINE

BUSINESS

Q: Two years have passed since the 

regulatory revision in July 2004, 

and machines designed for the new 

regulations have revitalized the pachinko

machine market. But can pachislot

machines maintain their popularity?

A: In comparison with the previous

regulations, under the new regula-

tions, certain restrictions on pachislot

machines have been added at the develop-

ment stage. We expected that some time

18 SEGA SAMMY HOLDINGS

DEMAND FORECDEMAND FORECAST FOR AST FOR THE PACHISLCHISLOT MAT MACHINE MARKETCHINE MARKET
Old-format machines can only be installed for three years after they are approved. As a result, in 2006 and 2007, there will be two factors 

driving especially strong demand – the expiration of the installation period for hit, old-format machines and the complete replacement of 

old-format machines with new-format machines accompanying the regulatory revision.

2006 2007

Apr. May Jun. Jul. Aug. Sep. Oct. Nov. Dec. Jan. Feb. Mar. Apr. May Jun. Jul. Aug. Sep. Oct. Nov. Dec.

Old-format machines

New-format machines

First special demand factor
 

Special demand accompanying 
removal of hit, old-format machines

Principally from old-format
machines to old-format machines

Second special demand factor

Special demand accompanying final removal 
of old-format machines (all manufacturers)

Principally from old-format machines to 
new-format machines

In preparation for the complete removal
of old-format machines in 2007, companies
will need the ability to develop innovative 
new-format machines as well as the pro-
duction facilities and distribution systems 
that meet large-scale replacement demand. 

DEMAND FORECDEMAND FORECAST FOR AST FOR THE PACHISLCHISLOT MAT MACHINE MARKETCHINE MARKETDEMAND FORECAST FOR THE PACHISLOT MACHINE MARKET

The Group’s greatest strength 
is the ability to create major synergies

throughout its wide-ranging
fields of business.
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would be required for the market to

accept new pachislot machines, but the

new-format pachislot machines that we

have developed and sold have garnered a

certain degree of market support and pro-

vide an indication of the direction that

new-format machines will take. However,

as long as old-format machines are dis-

tributed and installed, it will be difficult to

achieve full-scale market acceptance of

new-format machines. Accordingly, in the

fiscal year ending March 2007, our strate-

gy is to steadily achieve our planned unit

sales by effectively launching major old-

format Sammy machines for which

approvals have already been obtained. At

the same time, we will strive to develop

strategic, new-format pachislot machines.

Old-format machines can be installed for

three years from the date they are

approved, meaning that all of those

machines must be replaced with new-for-

mat machines from summer to fall 2007.

Because more than one million 

machines will have to be replaced, new-

format machines will decide the success 

of all pachislot machine manufacturers. 

In this setting, the company that will 

get the most market support is the compa-

ny with three key strengths – domi-

nant development capabilities, product

strengths, and the production capacity to

smoothly meet the high level of demand

that will be concentrated in a short period

of time. That company is Sammy. In the

market for old-format pachislot machines,

Sammy was a pioneer in the development

of new genres and made the largest contri-

bution to the expansion of the market. 

In the period following the regulatory

revision, there will be no change in our

corporate declaration – “always proactive,

always pioneering.” These strengths will

be a key point of differentiation between

the Group and its competitors.

Q: Prior to the regulatory revision, there

were many pachislot and pachinko

machine models characterized by their

high payouts, and some observers have

commented that this may have driven

casual players away from the market.

A: I have stated that reducing this 

element of pachislot and pachinko

machines and increasing the entertain-

ment value will be very important in

developing a base of new fans, and that

these measures are, in fact, indispensable

for the sustained growth of the industry.

We must broaden the possibilities of

machine development so that, in the futu-

re, more users can enjoy the entertain-

ment value rather than the payout 

element. Sammy is highly regarded for the

proposal and supply of new types of

machines based on that idea, especially 

in the pachinko machine market. These

new type machines, which can be enjoyed

for longer periods of time for a smaller

amount of money, have not previously

been available in the market, and as a

result we have secured a solid market

position in this category.

Q: In the pachinko machine business,

the Company has set a challenging

goal for unit sales in the fiscal year ending

March 2007. Will the Company be able to

achieve that goal in a highly competitive

market environment?

A:Our goal for pachinko machine unit

sales in the current fiscal year may

seem quite high. But over the past several

years, Sammy has significantly bolstered 

its development capabilities in this area,

and we are confident that a range of

future initiatives will enable us to increase

our share even further. Our multi-brand

strategy is one of those initiatives. 

Sammy has a commanding share of the

pachislot machine market. The driving

force behind that success has been the

multi-brand strategy, which covers our

own Sammy brand products, RODEO

brand products offered by our subsidiary

RODEO, and the supply of units to part-

ner companies. The development of mul-

tiple brands has enabled us to formulate

product strategies by brand, to take

advantage of diverse distribution routes,

and to obtain additional approvals. As a

result, the strategy has made a major con-

tribution to increasing unit sales. In the

pachinko machine business, we had only

been developing the Sammy brand, and 

to secure a leading market share, we need-

ed to implement a multi-brand strategy.

Our capital and business tie-up with

GINZA will make it possible for Sammy

to implement a multi-brand strategy in

pachinko machines. The GINZA brand

will not only be used for pachinko machi-

nes, however, but will also be positioned

as a new brand in pachislot machines. 

In this way, we will work to expand the

overall share of our Pachislot and

Pachinko Machine Business. 

To further enhance the market’s evalu-

ation of our products, our biggest chal-

lenge is to reinforce our development

capabilities. In addition to improving our

development capabilities for the imple-

mentation of the multi-brand strategy, we

will also aggressively take on the challenge

of developing entirely new types of pachi-

slot and pachinko machines that invigor-

ate their markets.

’00 ’01 ’02 ’03 ’04 ’05 ’06

EFFECTIVENESS OF MULEFFECTIVENESS OF MULTIBRAND STRATEGYTEGY –
CONFIRMED BY SHIPMENTONFIRMED BY SHIPMENTS OF PACHISLOT MAT MACHINES
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EFFECTIVENESS OF MULTIBRAND STRATEGY –
CONFIRMED BY SHIPMENTS OF PACHISLOT MACHINES 
(Machines)

All pachislot machine 
manufacturers will have 

to compete on the basis of 
new-format machines,

and we will win that game.
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Q: What progress is the Company

making in total pachinko hall services,

a new field of business?

A: Total pachinko hall services are not

limited to the supply of pachislot and

pachinko machines. They entail the provi-

sion of a total range of products and servic-

es, including peripheral equipment, prizes,

and hall design. Our goals are to provide

comprehensive services to pachinko halls

and to broaden our profit opportunities

through the provision of these services.In

August 2005, we made H-I System Corpo-

ration, a company that makes hall comput-

ers and prize POS systems, a subsidiary. By

doing so, we bolstered our lineup of com-

panies engaged in total pachinko hall serv-

ices, including Shuko Electronics, which

provides pachinko hall peripheral equip-

ment; Sammy Design, which provides total 

support for store development and plan-

ning, centered on pachinko hall design;

and NISSHO INTER LIFE, which handles

design and construction. We will need 

to further improve the quality of our solu-

tions in each field in order to clearly differ-

entiate ourselves from our competitors.

AMUSEMENT MACHINE SALES BUSINESS 

Q: In the Amusement Machine Sales

Business, the Company has a domi-

nant competitive edge in the domestic

market. What’s next?

A: In the domestic market, we will not

be content with our current posi-

tion. Rather, we will continue working to

strengthen our operations. In the past, in

the Amusement Machine Sales Business,

we provided major hit products on a cycle

of once every few years, and that cycle

caused fluctuations in sales and profits. 

In the future, through the introduction 

of a new business model, whereby a fee is

charged to the operator based on content

usage for certain products, we will work to

create recurring profit opportunities and

realize more stable growth.

Also, to achieve growth over the medi-

um to long term, we must succeed in

overseas markets. Many overseas markets

are still relatively unsaturated, so they

have exceptionally high growth potential

for us. In addition to Asian markets,

which we believe have the highest poten-

tial in the world, we have also positioned

other regions as target markets, specifical-

ly, North America and Western Europe.

Our approach will be for SEGA, on 

its own, to expand the scale of these mar-

kets. A key point will be the delivery of

products and services that match the char-

acteristics of each market. That’s why we

will bolster our local development and

sales capabilities as we strengthen our

ability to promote our operations in over-

seas markets.

AMUSEMENT CENTER OPERATIONS 

Q: In Amusement Center Operations, 

the Company is moving ahead with

the development of large-scale facilities.

However, some investors, when consider-

ing the lower level of ROI from these opera-

tions, question if they should be continued.

A:To achieve stable growth over the

long term, we are paying careful

attention to maintaining an optimal 

balance in the Group’s business portfolio. 

We can expect high levels of return in the

pachislot and pachinko machine and con-

sumer businesses, but these businesses are

heavily dependent on hit products. On the

other hand, our Amusement Center

Operations generate a more modest level

of profitability, but the profits are excep-

tionally stable. By achieving a balance

between this type of business, with rela-

tively low profit-fluctuation risk, and

higher-risk, higher-return businesses, it

will be possible for us to follow a stable

course of growth. Moreover, I think that

in entertainment, seeking out the opin-

ions of customers is vitally important. The

fact that the Group’s amusement centers

are in direct daily contact with customers

has enabled us to create such highly com-

petitive products as The King of Beetles

“MUSHIKING” and LOVE AND BERRY

Dress Up and Dance!. As a comprehensive

entertainment company, our Amusement

Center Operations provide us with power-

ful synergies for all of our businesses.

Of course, we are not satisfied with the

level of profitability generated from this

business. We will continue to implement

thorough improvement measures, such as

scrap-and-build initiatives. 

CONSUMER BUSINESS 

Q: Would you discuss the reasons

behind the resurgence of the 

Consumer Business?

A:Our efforts to strengthen the devel-

opment system for game software,

the main business field in the Consumer

Business segment, extend back to be-

fore the management integration. Seven

development subsidiaries, which had been

established through a corporate separa-

By using the world-leading
product strengths of SEGA
in overseas markets with

high potential, the possibilities 
will be limitless.

Our goals are to provide
comprehensive services 

to pachinko halls and to broaden 
our profit opportunities.
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tion, were merged back into SEGA prior to

the management integration with the

objective of increasing efficiency.

Following the management integration,

under the newly established R&D Head-

quarters, development teams were tem-

porarily organized by category, such as

driving games and sports games, and mul-

tiple streams were introduced in the devel-

opment pipeline. These organizational

reforms served to increase the specializa-

tion and speed of our development activi-

ties. Subsequently, to achieve a more accu-

rate grasp of end-user needs, we vertically

integrated the development function and

the sales/marketing function, and institut-

ed rigorous profit management on a proj-

ect basis. And in addition to implementing

these initiatives, we acquired leading

development companies overseas, such as

The Creative Assembly Limited, SPORTS

INTERACTIVE Ltd., and SECRET LEVEL

Inc., which have successful titles and

advanced development and technical capa-

bilities. In this way, we are taking aggres-

sive steps to strengthen our regional devel-

opment system. The achievement of prof-

itability in the Consumer Business in the

fiscal year under review is an indication of

the success of these initiatives. 

Q: In the game software market, 

the launch of new game consoles 

is a major turning point. What is SEGA’s

strategy in that regard?

A: In May 2006, at the Electronic

Entertainment Expo 2006 held in Los

Angeles, California, game console compa-

nies displayed their next-generation game

consoles. Because there is a wide range of

variation in product concepts and software

development expenses are expected to

increase overall, the over-reliance toward

development of game software for a single

game console will entail considerable risk.

To diversify development risk, SEGA

has followed a multi-platform strategy,

providing a balanced lineup of game 

software for a variety of game consoles. 

In developing game software for new game

consoles, we will basically continue to fol-

low this strategy, but we will combine

“sales regions” and “game genres” with

“platforms” to create the optimal product

portfolio. We will allocate our develop-

ment resources in accordance with a care-

ful examination of how we can minimize

risks and maximize returns by developing

specific genres of software which meet the

consumer tastes in specific regions and

platforms. Maintaining a careful eye

toward profitability, we will implement

rigorous risk and cost management in line

with the product portfolio strategy I just

described. In this way, we will carefully

build a development strategy.

Q: Japanese companies are facing grow-

ing demands to raise their dividend

payout ratios. Would you discuss the Com-

pany’s approach to dividend payments?

A: I understand the concerns of inves-

tors about dividends. We consider

shareholder return to be our most impor-

tant management issue, and in accordance

with our results, we have provided meas-

ures such as implementing stock splits and

raising dividends. In the future, we will

maintain this approach.

On the other hand, raising corporate

value through efforts such as meeting

medium-term management objectives –

¥1 trillion in net sales and ¥200 billion in

ordinary income – is also an important

means of providing a return. And to do

that, we need to invest aggressively in

growth fields and implement M&A activi-

ties in areas where the Group’s develop-

ment capabilities are insufficient.

I would like to achieve an overall bal-

ance between providing a direct return 

to shareholders, such as through divi-

dends, and providing returns in other

ways, such as long-term growth in corpo-

rate value achieved through aggressive

investment of resources and the retention

of earnings in consideration of future

operational scale.

Q: In closing, do you have a message 

for shareholders and investors?

A: The entertainment industry is

changing rapidly and an entirely

new, intensely competitive environment is

emerging. The industry is undergoing fur-

ther reorganization. In this setting, the

SEGA SAMMY Group moved quickly and

established strong “wings” in the form of

its broad business portfolio, the strongest

in the industry. In the future, we will use

those “wings” to aggressively leverage syn-

ergies and target success not only in Japan

but also overseas.

We will become the world’s number one

comprehensive entertainment company.

In closing, I would like to thank our

shareholders and investors for their con-

tinued support for the SEGA SAMMY

Group.

Maintaining a careful eye
toward profitability

and rigorously managing risk,
we will carefully build

an optimal product portfolio.

The achievement of profitability
in the Consumer Business

in the fiscal year under review
is an indication of the success

of our reformative efforts.
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Segment Contribution to Net Sales Overview of Results

Pachislot and
Pachinko 
Machine
Business

’06’05

280.1 265.6

103.9 99.8

37.1 37.6

48.0%
¥265.6
billion

Net sales (billions of yen)

Operating income (billions of yen)

Operating margin (%)

Amusement
Machine Sales
Business

63.3

71.5

7.4
12.2

11.7
17.0

’06’05

12.9%
¥71.5
billion

Net sales (billions of yen)

Operating income (billions of yen)

Operating margin (%)

Amusement
Center
Operations

83.2

106.2

5.5 9.2

6.6 8.7

’06’05

19.2%
¥106.2
billion

Net sales (billions of yen)

Operating income (billions of yen)

Operating margin (%)

Consumer 
Business 65.3

90.4

–13.5

2.0

–8.8

2.2

’06’05

16.3%
¥90.4
billion

Net sales (billions of yen)

Operating income (loss) (billions of yen)

Operating margin (%)

© Sammy

© SEGA

© SEGA
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Market Environment Market Presence and Strengths

● In July 2004, the regulations pertaining to the

Entertainment Establishments Control Law of

Japan were revised. In the pachislot machine

market, manufacturers are actively developing

new-format machines and working to obtain

approvals. However, demand for old-format

pachislot machines is expected to remain high

for the time being. In the pachinko machine 

market, the regulatory revision has increased 

the degree of flexibility in machine development,

and manufacturers are launching many new

machines with enhanced entertainment value. 

While the number of pachinko halls is declin-

ing, the total number of installed pachislot 

and pachinko machines is rising slightly due 

to the trend toward larger halls. The number of

installed pachislot machines is increasing while

the number of installed pachinko machines 

and players are decreasing. The industry needs

to revitalize the market and draw new players 

to the halls.

● We maintain a commanding position in the pachislot

machine market, with a 33.6% market share in unit sales for

the fiscal year ended March 31, 2006. In pachinko machines,

we are making good progress toward becoming a market

leader, with a 7.1% market share in the fiscal year under

review. Our key strength is our overwhelming R&D capabili-

ty, which we are using to propose new, market-leading

machines with enhanced entertainment value. 

● The domestic amusement machine sales market

contracted temporarily, but against a back-

ground of trends toward large amusement 

centers and entertainment complexes, the

launch of network-enabled game machines 

and large-scale game machines that are differ-

entiated from home game consoles drove

progress in the market, which is currently on a

course of recovery.

● In the field of high-value-added products, such as network-

enabled game machines, we boast advanced product

strengths supported by unrivaled development capabilities.

Another strength is our product portfolio, which includes 

a lineup of existing products that are popular with a wide

range of customers, from adults to children.

● In Japan, amusement centers are becoming

larger and more diversified. Amusement centers

in shopping centers with customer-drawing

ability are taking hold as community spaces 

targeting families. The adoption of large-scale

machines that are clearly differentiated from

home game consoles and can only be enjoyed

in amusement centers, such as network-enabled

games and children’s card games, is driving a

market recovery.

● We lead the industry with the development of large-scale

centers and of centers with full lineups that appeal to a wide

range of customer age groups and diverse needs. By merg-

ing amusement-center-related subsidiaries into SEGA, we

enhanced our business development capabilities and bol-

stered our overseas operations. Moreover, we took the initia-

tive in children’s card games, with such offerings as The King

of Beetles “MUSHIKING” and LOVE AND BERRY Dress Up and

Dance!, and currently we are maintaining a substantial lead

over competitors.

● In packaged game software, in preparation 

for the full-scale adoption of next-generation

game consoles, competition in development is

heating up around the world. On the other hand,

to absorb rising development costs, there is a

strong trend toward multifaceted development

into other entertainment fields, triggering merg-

ers among companies in the industry.

Accompanying the development of infrastruc-

ture, global market expansion in online games is

anticipated.

Content for mobile platforms is expanding

strongly in the domestic market, with support

from the increasingly advanced capabilities 

of mobile phones. On a global scale, however, 

the adoption of new handsets and the increas-

ingly advanced capabilities of handsets are

expected to drive market growth. 

In toys, with a trend toward fewer children 

per family, the overall market is contracting, 

but toys targeting a wider range of age groups

and exceeding the traditional framework of 

toy products, as well as educational toys, are

considered to be growth fields. 

In animation, the field of 3-D graphics is

expected to record strong growth. 

● In the domestic market, we are a leader in packaged game

software. Due to stronger development capabilities and

profitability stemming from reorganization measures, both

before and after the management integration, and to

aggressive acquisition of prominent overseas development

studios, our global presence is increasing rapidly. 

In content for mobile platforms, toys, and animations, 

we are still a small company by sales, but we have built 

a distinctive position in the industry with unique products 

and services. A key strength is our ability to leverage our

broad, strong portfolio and implement multifaceted devel-

opment of individual pieces of content to diversify develop-

ment costs and risks while expanding profit sources and

increasing content value. 
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* An overview of segment results in the year under review is provided in the Management’s Discussion & Analysis section on pages 44 to 48.

Pachinko and Pachislot Machine Market Trends

The number of pachinko halls is declining, but the total number of installed machines is holding steady due   
to the trend toward larger halls.
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We have the top share of the pachislot

machine market and are closing in on

the leaders in the pachinko machine

market. We will strive to take advan-

tage of the dramatic changes in the

operating environment to establish

rock-solid positions in each of these

fields of business, which are powerful

profit drivers.

■  MARKET ENVIRONMENT – 

INTENSIFIED COMPETITION IN DEVELOP-

MENT OF NEW-FORMAT MACHINES

ACCOMPANYING REGULATORY REVISION

The revision of the regulations pertain-

ing to the Entertainment Establishments

Control Law of Japan1 that was imple-

mented in July 2004 has fostered a shift

in emphasis in pachislot machine devel-

opment from the gambling element to

the entertainment value. Companies are

actively developing new-format ma-

chines and working to obtain approvals

for them. However, demand for old-for-

mat machines for which approvals were

obtained prior to the regulatory revision

is expected to remain strong through

the first half of the fiscal year ending

March 2007. Old-format machines can

only be installed for three years from the

point when they are approved. The

reserves of old-format machines that

have been approved will steadily be used

up, and the market will gradually shift

toward new-format machines. The

installation of old-format machines will

come to an end from summer to fall

2007, and as a result, in the fiscal year

ending March 2008, large-scale replace-

ment demand is expected as old-format

machines are completely replaced with

new-format machines. 

In pachinko machines, machine clas-

sifications2 were abolished due to the

regulatory revision and the degree of

flexibility in machine development has

increased. Companies have launched

multiple machines with wide-ranging

entertainment characteristics, which 

fostered replacement demand from

pachinko halls. However, the market has

not seen the penetration of machines

that can resolve the industry’s key chal-

lenges – enabling customers to play for a

long time for a small amount of money

and bringing casual players back to the

market. Industry-wide initiatives are

needed to resolve these issues. 

ALADDIN II Evolution pachislot machine

© Sammy
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The number of pachinko halls is declin-

ing each year, but the opening of large-

scale halls, principally by major chains, has

led to a small increase in the total number

of installed pachislot and pachinko

machines in recent years. Pachislot

machine installations are increasing, while

pachinko machine installations continue

to decrease. Moreover, the total number

of pachislot and pachinko players is

declining, and a key challenge for the

industry is securing a broader player base. 

1. A change in the model testing rules of the Security Electronics and

Communications Technology Association, which are mandatory for

manufacturers of pachinko and pachislot machines.

2. Previously, specifications were determined and models were tested 

in accordance with three categories of pachinko machines.

■  MARKET POSITION AND STRENGTHS – 

INDUSTRY-LEADING PRODUCT DEVELOP-

MENT CAPABILITIES

Since garnering the top share of the pachi-

slot machine market – 32.8% – in 2001, we

have consistently maintained a market

share above 30%. We have established a

rock-solid position as the market leader,

with market shares of 40.4% in 2004 and

33.6% in 2005. In pachinko machines, our

market share was below 3% until 2002.

Since then, we have steadily been closing

the gap with the market leaders, and the

Sammy brand is also establishing a foot-

hold in the pachinko machine market. 

In accordance with our development

philosophy – “Sammy... the wellspring of

new ideas” – our key strength in pachislot

and pachinko machines is the develop-

ment capabilities that we have drawn on

to be the first to launch machines with

innovative functions, entertainment value,

and graphics. Following the management

integration, we have further enhanced this

strength by sharing development re-

sources with other segments in the Group.

Other key strengths include the robust

production facilities and distribution sys-

tem needed to respond accurately to

orders that will be concentrated during a

short period of time and to prevent lost

sales opportunities, as well as a nationwide

sales network. Another competitive

advantage is our ability to reduce costs

through procurement efficiencies driven

by high unit sales of pachislot and

pachinko machines and by standardizing

parts within the Group.

■  BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT – 

ONGOING GROWTH IN PACHISLOT 

AND PACHINKO MACHINES

In the pachislot machine business, we will

strive to increase the number of new regu-

lation machine approvals while principally

relying on sales of major old-format ma-

chines for which approval has already

been obtained. Through further strength-

ening of our development system, we will

work to develop differentiated new-format

machines and to obtain additional

approvals. Moreover, we will strategically

time the market introduction of those

products to take advantage of demand

trends, thereby steadily meeting the antici-

pated full-fledged replacement demand

for new-format machines. In these ways,

we will reinforce our top market share. 

In the pachinko machine business, we

will strive to enter the top ranks in terms

of market share by achieving our sales tar-

get, which calls for substantial growth over

the previous year. To achieve the planned

level of sales, we will (1) steadily supply hit

titles by bolstering our development lines

and increasing the number of approvals

obtained, and (2) implement a multi-

brand strategy with the Sammy and

GINZA brands, following the capital and

business tie-up with GINZA Co., Ltd.,

which develops, manufactures, and sells

pachinko and pachislot machines.

In addition, we will advance cost cuts

through the reuse of parts for pachislot and

pachinko machines. And we will also work

to revitalize the pachislot and pachinko

industry by providing easy-to-enjoy prod-

ucts that attract potential players.

In total pachinko hall services, which

include peripheral equipment, prizes, and

hall design, we are working to further

enhance our system for comprehensively

meeting a wide range of pachinko hall

needs. In August 2005, for example, we

made H-I System Corporation, which

makes hall computers and prize POS sys-

tems, a subsidiary. We will continue work-

ing to bolster these services to the point

where they contribute to our results as

soon as possible.
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■  MARKET ENVIRONMENT – 

A CLEAR RECOVERY TREND

Accompanying the spread of home game

consoles, the domestic amusement ma-

chine market had declined. In recent

years, however, the market has recovered

due to the rapid adoption of machines

that are clearly differentiated from home

game consoles. These include network-

enabled game machines and large, so-

called satellite game machines utilizing

card systems. 

■  MARKET POSITION AND STRENGTHS –

COMMANDING STRENGTHS IN HIGH-VALUE-

ADDED PRODUCTS

We are one of the top-ranked companies

in the domestic industry in terms of sales.

In particular, we have unrivaled strengths

in high-value-added products, such as net-

work-enabled game machines and trading

card games. The development capabilities

that support those product strengths are

the Company’s most important competi-

tive advantage in this field. In addition, the

management integration of SEGA and

Sammy created a broad product lineup

that extends from high-value-added prod-

ucts to products for children and families.

This lineup gives us the ability to attract

customers from a wide range of ages and

groups, which has become another com-

petitive edge for the Company.

Amusement Machine Sales
In high-value-added products, we have unrivaled development 

capabilities and a powerful product portfolio.

With these strengths, we are building our presence

in markets around the world.

Sources: JAMMA, AOU, and NSA

Sales figure for 2005 is not disclosed by survey organizations.
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Large-scale medal game machine

© SEGA
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1
 Sell cabinets and

other standard parts
and provide content

at no cost

2
 Charge for

playing games

3
 Fee based on
content usage

Game
Players

Amusement
Center

Operators

ALL. Net P-ras
Under this business model we sell cabinets and

other standard parts and then provide mother-

boards and software at no cost. We track content

use through our network, and receive payment

based on that use. This model enables operators

of amusement centers to introduce machines with

a small initial investment, so machine adoption is

expected to be higher than under the convention-

al sales-based model. Moreover, under the new

business model, the SEGA SAMMY Group’s busi-

ness will extend beyond the sale of the machines.

By maintaining the market value of content, we

can generate continued profits, and as a result 

we expect the new model to lead to steady gains

in revenues and profit for the Amusement

Machine Sales Business.

Sangokushi Taisen 2

Network-enabled card action game machine

© SEGA

■  BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT – 

ACCELERATE EXPANSION IN JAPAN 

AND OVERSEAS

In the domestic market, we will work 

to further enhance our product strengths

by bolstering our development system 

and to shorten our product supply cycle for

major hit products, which is generally two

to three years in the amusement machine

sales sector. In these ways, we will strive to

continually introduce new hit models into

the market. With SEGA’s strength – a full

product lineup – we will work to attract a

wide range of customers. Furthermore, we

will take steps to reduce revenue and profit

fluctuation risk stemming from depend-

ence on hit titles. To that end, through the

introduction of ALL.Net P-ras, a new

usage-based business model where pay-

ment is based on content usage, we will

work to increase the market value of con-

tent and thereby to generate steady increas-

es in revenues and profits.

In addition to strengthening develop-

ment and diversifying services, we will fur-

ther reinforce production and distribution

systems in order to meet large-scale de-

mand and reduce lost sales opportunities.

At the same time, we will strive to lower

production costs. 

A key challenge for this segment is to

increase the percentage of sales con-

tributed by overseas operations through

aggressive business development in 

overseas markets. Rather than simply 

taking hit products from the domestic

market and launching them overseas, 

an important part of our strategy for over-

seas markets is to supply products that 

are designed to meet the substantially 

differing needs of each region. Accord-

ingly, we will bolster marketing through

cooperation with Amusement Center

Operations and establish regional devel-

opment systems.
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■ MARKET ENVIRONMENT –

TREND TOWARD LARGER, MORE-COMPLEX

FACILITIES

Like the amusement machine sales mar-

ket, the amusement center market was

adversely affected by the spread of home

game consoles. Nonetheless, due to the

emergence of innovative, large-scale

amusement machines that can only be

played in amusement centers, the sector

has entered a recovery phase. Store for-

mats are becoming larger and more com-

plex, while amusement centers located in

shopping centers that have the ability to

draw customers are gaining a foothold as

community spaces for families. In addi-

tion, the spread of machines for children’s

card games is driving the emergence of a

new market structure.

■ MARKET POSITION AND STRENGTHS –

EXPANSION LED BY CHILDREN’S 

CARD GAMES

Diverse amusement center development

activities, which extend to centers that are

larger in scale, located in the suburbs, and

multifaceted, are a distinctive characteristic

of the Amusement Center Operations. We

have established a position of industry lead-

ership with a full lineup of products that

meet the needs of a wide span of ages and

customer groups. Moreover, by planning

and developing new amusement center for-

mats to facilitate the proposal of a new style

of entertainment and by entering untapped

market sectors, we are leading the way in

revitalizing the markets. In the field of chil-

dren’s card games, two key games – The

King of Beetles “MUSHIKING” for kinder-

garten and elementary school boys and

LOVE AND BERRY Dress Up and Dance!,

for kindergarten and elementary school

Amusement Center Operations

 
Trend toward Larger-Scale Amusement Centers
(Centers) (Machines)

 
Amusement Center Operations 
Market Scale (Retail Sales)
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We will open up new markets around the world by drawing 

on the innovation and development capabilities that were

demonstrated by the creation of a new genre of children’s card

games and the business development capabilities that were

reinforced by the management integration.

Tokyo Joypolis
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girls – have far surpassed the competition

in both number of installed machines and

card sales. These games have become a sta-

ble source of profits for the Group. 

■ BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT –

SEGA WILL DEVELOP OVERSEAS MARKETS

In Japan, SEGA will work to invigorate

amusement centers and raise profitability

by employing scrap-and-build initiatives

for centers and implementing efficient

operations. Moreover, in opening new 

centers, we will increasingly focus on enter-

tainment complexes with high customer-

drawing ability. In children’s card games,

we will work to record steady revenues and

profits by taking steps to maintain the pop-

ularity of existing products, such as The

King of Beetles “MUSHIKING,” LOVE AND

BERRY Dress Up and Dance!, and Dinosaur

King. These steps will include sponsoring

game tournaments around the country,

periodically upgrading software, and using

the content in entertainment software,

toys, and animations. We will also focus on

further market development by stepping

up our focus on the introduction of new

products and business development in

overseas markets. 

In overseas markets, centered on Asia

and North America, our approach will

entail SEGA creating markets on its own,

opening model centers and assisting local

operators. Through enhanced cooperation

with the Amusement Machine Sales

Business, we will work to accurately meet

needs in each market. 
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The King of Beetles “MUSHIKING“

Steady, Ongoing Growth 
in Children’s Card Games
SEGA lends machines to operators of amusement centers 

at no cost, and those operators purchase cards for the

machines from SEGA. This business model and low space

requirements have proved advantageous not only in

securing installations in amusement centers but also 

in the development of new markets, such as shopping 

centers and convenience stores. 

(An interview with the developer of The King of Beetles “MUSHIKING” and LOVE AND BERRY 

Dress Up and Dance! appears on pages 10 to 13)

Dinosaur King

© SEGA

How to Play The King of Beetles “MUSHIKING”
1. Insert a ¥100 coin.

2. The machine randomly issues a Beetle Card or a Skill Card.

3. Select Story mode or Competition mode.

4. Scan any Beetle Card and up to three Skill Cards.

(If you select Competition mode, then make an additional

selection: play the computer or play another person).

5. Play paper-scissors-rock; the winner’s beetle attacks 

the other player’s beetle.

6. The first to drain the strength of the opposing beetle 

is the winner.
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■  MARKET ENVIRONMENT – NEW GAME

CONSOLES PUT COMPANIES TO THE TEST

Against a background of changes in the

operating environment – a declining

birthrate, an aging population, and the

advent of next-generation game consoles –

companies in the home videogame soft-

ware and toy sectors are completing large-

scale mergers. 

In the domestic market for home

videogame software, conditions are chal-

lenging. In this setting, new game software

for mobile game consoles that target a

wide range of players is recording growing

popularity. Overseas, growth is projected

to remain strong, centered on Europe and

North America. 

The adoption of next-generation game

consoles is expected to activate and

expand game software markets. On the

other hand, for game software companies,

the increasingly advanced specifications of

game consoles are expected to result in

higher R&D costs. In the future, we are

likely to see growing gaps among game

software companies in terms of develop-

ment capabilities and financial strength. 

In online game markets, progress in

infrastructure is expected to drive high

growth, centered on Asia. In content for

mobile phones, steady gains in phone

capabilities have supported stable growth

in the domestic market, while the spread

of handsets and the enhancement of their

capabilities are expected to lead to over-

seas growth in the future. Conditions in

the traditional toy market are expected to

remain difficult as a result of the trends

toward a declining birthrate and an aging

population, and in this setting companies

need to take steps to differentiate them-

selves from their competitors, such as pro-

viding products targeting a wide range of

age groups. In the animation field, mean-

while, we anticipate solid progress against

a background of strong demand in over-

seas markets.

■  MARKET POSITION AND STRENGTHS –

USING THE GROUP’S STRENGTHS 

AS AN EDGE IN DEVELOPMENT

In home videogame software, the restruc-

turing measures that we implemented after

the management integration have resulted

in higher unit sales and substantial gains in

profitability, both in Japan and overseas.
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JISSEN PACHISLOT HISSHOUHOU ! ALADDIN II Evolution
© Sammy Published by SEGA

Consumer Business
We will achieve growth in all of our fields of business 

by bolstering our development process on a global scale,

strengthening our listed subsidiaries, and drawing

on Group synergies.

© SEGA
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Our market presence has made especially

rapid gains overseas due to aggressive

acquisitions of development studios with

promising intellectual property. In online

games, we are currently at the stage of

advance investment in development, but

we have positioned these operations as a

growth field, and we are working to bolster

them accordingly. In content for mobile

phones, we are establishing a unique mar-

ket position. For example, Sammy 777

Town, a pachislot and pachinko game web

site that effectively utilizes the Group’s

intellectual property, has 1.5 million mem-

bers. In toys, we have a medium-sized

market position by sales, but our new

products that appeal to all ages, genders,

and nationalities and our products that

utilize Group content have been received

well by the market. In animations, we

made TMS ENTERTAINMENT, LTD.,

which has provided many highly regarded

products, our subsidiary, enabling us to

enter the top ranks in the animation field. 

As demonstrated by its results in driv-

ing growth in home videogame software

markets around the world, SEGA is an

industry leader in graphics, technology,

and content development capabilities. The

SEGA brand is well known in overseas

markets, and we believe that SEGA is in an

excellent position for continued overseas

development.

In the future, differences in financial

strength will give rise to substantial differ-

entials in development capabilities among

companies competing in the Consumer

Business segment’s operational fields. The

Group has multiple businesses that are

stable sources of revenues and profits,

such as the Pachislot and Pachinko

Machine Business, and we are confident

that we have the resources needed 

to succeed in development competition.

Moreover, by sharing development re-

sources throughout the Group, we can

diversify the risk of rising development

costs. The ability to generate these types of

synergies in the area of revenues and prof-

its is another key strength of the Group. 

■  BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT –

SYNERGISTIC GROWTH IN ALL OPERATIONS

In home videogame software, we are

approaching the transition to next-gener-

ation game consoles as an opportunity to

expand our market share, and accordingly

we will work to further bolster our devel-

opment capabilities. In particular, in over-

seas markets, which are more than twice

the size of the domestic market, we will

enhance our local development systems

through aggressive acquisition of studios

with competitive titles and brands and

advanced development capabilities. In

addition, we will follow a multi-platform

strategy, combining “sales regions” and

“game genres” to create the optimal prod-

uct portfolio. 

We have positioned online games as a

growth field, and we plan to develop these

operations into a key source of revenues

and profits over the medium to long term.

The first step in this process will be the

establishment of a strong operational

foundation through advance investment

in development. We will especially devote

resources to the establishment of a solid

foothold as rapidly as possible in growth

markets in Asia, where we will aggressively

enter tie-ups with local companies. In

content for mobile phones, we will bolster

existing content as well as provide new

content and services and enhance overseas

business development, thereby establish-

ing a new revenue and profit foundation.

In toys, we will work to create new mar-

kets through the development of products

that transcend traditional concepts, and in

animations, we will extend popular prod-

ucts and create new offerings. 

In addition to these initiatives, through

close cooperation throughout the Group,

we will advance the concept of “multiple

uses for single content,” and achieve syn-

ergistic growth in all of our operations.

SHADOW THE HEDGEHOG

Brain Trainer Portable

© SEGA

Brain Trainer TM is a registered trademark of SEGA TOYS.

Development, production: SEGA; Planning, development

cooperation: SEGA TOYS; Editorial supervision: Professor 

Ryuta Kawashima, New Industry Creation Hatchery

Center, Tohoku University
idog © SEGATOYS 2005

© SEGA, 2005



34 SEGA SAMMY HOLDINGS

■  BASIC STANCE ON CORPORATE

GOVERNANCE

The SEGA SAMMY Group regards corpo-

rate governance as the key foundation for

its corporate activities. The fundamental

principles of the Group’s corporate gover-

nance policy are to enhance efficiency,

secure a sound corporate organization,

and enhance transparency. This policy is

followed in addressing such important

management issues as selecting candidates

for directorships, deciding compensation

for directors, implementing management

oversight, and determining compensation

for corporate auditors. 

ENHANCING EFFICIENCY

The Group will maximize corporate value

by establishing expeditious, appropriate

decision-making processes and by increas-

ing the efficiency of corporate manage-

ment. We intend to return the benefits

gained from those efforts to our share-

holders and other stakeholders. 

SECURING A SOUND CORPORATE

ORGANIZATION

Amid volatile business conditions, the

Group will facilitate the maximization of

corporate value by undertaking risk man-

agement based on a full awareness of the

range of risks that the Group faces. At the

same time, we intend to ensure the sound-

ness of our corporate organization through

the reinforcement of compliance systems

focused on strict adherence to social norms

as well as laws and statutory regulations. 

ENHANCING TRANSPARENCY

In light of the growing importance of dis-

closure among listed companies, the Group

will increase management transparency by

fulfilling its responsibility to explain corpo-

rate actions to shareholders and other

stakeholders and by realizing greater dis-

closure through energetic, comprehensive

investor relations (IR) activities.

■  CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

ORGANIZATION

The Group has adopted a corporate audi-

tor system in consideration of its desire to

enable directors to make quick and opti-

mum management decisions using their

bountiful knowledge and experience of

industry, market trends, products, mer-

chandise, and services. At the same time,

we have strengthened our executive officer

and internal control systems, reinforcing

our corporate governance organization

from the aspects of business execution

and organizational oversight. One of our

measures to strengthen corporate gover-

nance has been to establish the Advisory

Committee, with the goal of improving

our efforts to secure the soundness 

and enhance the transparency of manage-

ment. Comprised by a group of promi-

nent people from outside the Group, the

Advisory Committee contributes to that

process by offering management advice

and recommendations from a broad per-

spective. Furthermore, we are pursuing

the fulfillment of our corporate social

responsibility (CSR) to establish a good

relationship with our stakeholders based

on the following perspectives.

First, as a Group, we approach our CSR

activities from the viewpoint of achieving

sustained growth in corporate value and

contributing to the sustained development

of society. 

Second, to meet the wide-ranging

demands of corporate citizens by society,

the Company has established the CSR

Management Committee, with the Com-

pany’s representative director acting as

chairman. The committee’s members com-

prise management of the Company, SEGA

CORPORATION, and Sammy Corpo-

ration. To support the specific actions of

that committee, the Company has also set

up the CSR Promotion Department. 

Third, to accurately deal with a broad

range of stakeholders on a Groupwide

basis, we are voluntarily and proactively

developing CSR activity programs. We

have instituted the Group Management

Philosophy, the Group CSR Charter, and

the Group Code of Conduct to provide

the foundation for our CSR activities. We

also are revising and creating various types

of in-house rules and manuals to govern

individual business activities. 

CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE
The SEGA SAMMY Group regards corporate governance as

the key foundation for its corporate activities and considers

its proper implementation to be essential for sustained

growth in corporate value.
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■  PROGRESS WITH IMPLEMENTING

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE MEASURES

1. BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Comprising six directors as of March 31,

2006, the Board of Directors convenes

once a month and additionally as required

and manages the Company responsively.

Further, the Board of Directors and other

bodies of the Company undertake deci-

sion making and reporting for certain sig-

nificant management issues of Group

companies.

2. BOARD OF CORPORATE AUDITORS

The Board of Corporate Auditors, consist-

ing of four corporate auditors as of March

31, 2006, meets once a month and addi-

tionally as required to deliberate various

company issues and thoroughly analyze

specific issues. 

3. ADVISORY COMMITTEE

A management advisory arm, the Advisory

Committee provides management advice

and recommendations from the point of

view of improving the soundness and

transparency of management. Comprising

five prominent people from outside the

Group, the committee meets monthly. 

4. GROUP MANAGEMENT LIAISON

COMMITTEE

Meeting once a month, the Group Man-

agement Liaison Committee comprises

directors and corporate auditors from the

Company, SEGA and Sammy. Its purpose

is to form a consensus by the Group on

various issues based on the sharing of

information and thorough debate. 

5. GROUP AUDIT COMMITTEE

Chaired by the Company’s representative

director, the Group Audit Committee

comprises directors, corporate auditors,

and corporate division heads from the

Company, SEGA, and Sammy. The com-

mittee convenes approximately once every

three months and receives reports on the

progress and results of the Audit Office’s

audits of management divisions.

6. HOLDINGS AUDIT LIAISON COMMITTEE 

The Holdings Audit Liaison Committee

consists of standing corporate auditors,

directors, and corporate division heads

from the Company, SEGA, and Sammy as

well as representatives of the Company’s

independent auditor KPMG Azsa & Co.

At monthly meetings, committee mem-

bers exchange opinions from their respec-

tive standpoints and seek to enhance

accounting compliance. 

7. GROUP AUDIT LIAISON COMMITTEE

The Group Audit Liaison Committee com-

prises standing corporate auditors from

Group companies. They convene as re-

quired to share information on such timely

issues for the Group as revisions in laws

and to build close working relationships

among the standing corporate auditors. 

8. AUDITORS AND AUDIT OFFICE LIAISON

COMMITTEE

The Auditors and Audit Office Liaison

Committee consists of standing corporate

auditors from the Company, SEGA and

Sammy as well as members of the

Company’s Audit Office. The committee

meets every month with the purpose of

ensuring the soundness of management

by sharing information. 

9. CSR MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

The CSR Management Committee decides

CSR promotional policies for the Group,

establishes and provides instruction for

specific CSR promotional measures, and

checks on the status of and provides guid-

ance for the CSR promotional measures of

each of the Group companies. Comprising

the presidents, the corporate division and

secretariat heads, and corporate auditors

of the Company, SEGA, and Sammy, the

committee meets once every three months

and is chaired by the representative direc-

tor of the Company. In addition, the CSR

committees of the Company, SEGA, and

Sammy meet individually each month to

pursue the specific measures decided by

the CSR Management Committee and to

oversee progress within each company.

■  POSITIONING AND ROLE OF

INDIVIDUAL COMMITTEES

The Advisory Committee acts as an adviso-

ry arm to the Board of Directors, providing

management advice and recommenda-

tions, while the Group Management

Liaison Committee acts as a detailed inves-

tigative arm in screening business propos-

als before they are submitted to the Board

of Directors. The Group Management

Liaison Committee also contributes to col-

laboration by the Company, SEGA, and

Sammy in business operations. 

The Holdings Audit Liaison, Group

Audit Liaison, and Auditors and Audit

Office Liaison committees also contribute

to collaboration among the Group compa-

nies. The three committees, each of which

has a different membership composition,

are information sharing and opinion

exchange bodies regarding management

oversight.

Conversely, the Group Audit Commit-

tee is an important advisory committee

that acts as a liaison between the manage-

ment oversight and business execution

bodies. The primary function of the

Group Audit Committee is to report on

audits and give recommendations on

compliance to these two types of bodies. 

The task of the CSR Management

Committee is to firmly implant the spirit

of the Group CSR Charter in the corpo-

rate culture of the entire Group by decid-

ing various Groupwide CSR measures and

managing their implementation. 

The Company established the Audit

Office as its internal audit department to

ensure that business is carried out in

accordance with laws and its Article of

Incorporation, thereby achieving proper

conduct of business. Comprising 10

employees, the Audit Office implements

internal audits of all Group companies. In

addition, the Company receives the advice

of KPMG Azsa & Co., which has served as

its independent auditor since the

Company’s establishment on October 1,

2004, not only on fiscal year-end audits

but also on accounting treatment and

other issues during the fiscal year. 
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■  BASIC STANCE ON INTERNAL

CONTROL SYSTEM

The Group regards the establishment of an

internal control system as an essential

aspect of pursuing its fundamental princi-

ples of raising efficiency, securing a sound

corporate organization, and enhancing

transparency. We believe that an internal

control system is an organized and system-

atic method of dealing with risk. Such a

system is realized through business effec-

tiveness and efficiency and through the

establishment of a management organiza-

tion that can secure the reliability of finan-

cial reporting and a corporate culture with

a high awareness of compliance that can

ensure the propriety of our business. The

Company has taken steps to reaffirm that

its management organization accords with

the Corporation Law and the revisions of

the Securities and Exchange Law and to

establish an appropriate corporate culture.

In addition to instituting the Group CSR

Charter to provide guiding principles for

business decisions and the Group Code of

Conduct to provide guiding principles for

business execution, we also require all

directors and management-level employ-

ees to submit letters of confirmation and

pledges regarding compliance and to exe-

cute their job responsibilities fairly and

appropriately. For directors, in particular,

we have established regulations regarding

their service and ethics as directors. These

rules aim to make them aware of their

responsibility for the management of the

Company that has been entrusted to them

by resolution at the General Shareholders’

Meeting, and focus on the points they

need to adhere to in the pursuit of their

responsibilities as directors. Furthermore,

to empower the Group with a self-cleans-

ing function and to prevent or minimize

the occurrence of incidents due to legal

violations or inappropriate conduct, we

have established hotlines inside and out-

side the Company for reporting such mat-

ters. Moreover, to achieve independent

monitoring, we established the Audit

Office to act as our internal control

department in carrying out internal audits

of the companies of the Group. 

PROGRESS WITH ESTABLISHING INTERNAL

CONTROL SYSTEM

Sammy Corporation, one of the Group’s

core operating companies, began to con-

struct an internal control system based on

the Committee of Sponsoring Organiza-

tions of the Treadway Commission

(COSO) framework in the second quarter

of 2005. Following this step, the Company

launched efforts to put in place a Group

internal control system. Using the work

done by Sammy as a reference, the

Company is proceeding with the estab-

lishment of a Group internal control sys-

tem capable of achieving the reliability in

financial reporting that will be required by

the revised Securities and Exchange Law

(Japan’s version of the Sarbanes-Oxley

Law) when it is enforced. 

PROGRESS WITH ESTABLISHING A RISK

MANAGEMENT SYSTEM

We believe that the core framework for

risk management is formed by a corporate

culture in which an awareness of compli-

ance is firmly rooted. Therefore, we are

reinforcing internal monitoring activities,

such as compliance education and self-

inspection systems, at Group companies

in accordance with their circumstances.

Each of the companies of the Group

implements various risk management

measures to address business risk. In addi-

tion, the Company is collecting and shar-

ing information as required to achieve risk

management on a Groupwide basis.

PROGRESS WITH ESTABLISHING AN

INFORMATION CONTROL SYSTEM

The Company has determined Rules for

Handling and Managing Confidential

Corporate Information. Based on these

rules, the Company assigns different levels

of security to information and handles

and manages the information accordingly.

The Company encourages all employees

to appropriately manage and use internal

computer system terminals and networks,

requiring them to sign pledges to that

effect when joining the Company. 

■  STANCE ON HOSTILE TAKEOVERS

The Company believes that endeavoring

to raise business and corporate efficiency,

secure a sound corporate organization,

enhance transparency, and meet the

expectations of stakeholders will lead to

the maximization of corporate value and

greater market capitalization. 

■  PROGRESS WITH BUSINESS

INFORMATION DISCLOSURE 

(IR ACTIVITIES)

The Group recognizes that fairness and

timeliness are the most important factors

in disclosing business information to

shareholders and investors. One of the

ways in which we practice fairness in pro-

viding information is to broadcast our

information meetings on financial per-

formance for securities analysts and insti-

tutional investors in conjunction with

announcements of interim or fiscal year-

end financial results over the Internet. In

addition, we proactively seek direct com-

munications with investors by participat-

ing in seminars and conferences at home

and abroad. 

For our individual shareholders and

investors, we participate in various types of

individual investor information meetings.

Among the measures taken to encourage a

deeper understanding of our corporate

activities by individual investors is an IR

web site specifically designed for individual

investors that offers a wide range of useful

information.

The SEGA SAMMY Group intends to

draw on the opinions of shareholders and

investors gathered through its IR activities

to further heighten the transparency of its

corporate governance system. 
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■  SEGA SAMMY GROUP CSR CHARTER

WITH CUSTOMERS

We will bear in mind the current needs

and interests of our customers in our

effort to provide entertainment filled with

dreams and excitement.

WITH PARTNERS

We will maintain fair and impartial rela-

tionships with our suppliers and work

together as partners in providing entertain-

ment filled with dreams and excitement.

WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND INVESTORS

We will view our business with a global

perspective in our efforts to ensure sus-

tained growth and to maximize corporate

value.

Further, we will enhance management

transparency and meet the expectations of

our shareholders and society through fair

and timely disclosure and appropriate

returns in profits.

WITH EMPLOYEES

Our employees bring to us creativity and a

spirit of challenge. They are our most cher-

ished assets and the fuel to our growth.

We will cultivate a corporate culture that

allows them to fully exploit their talents

and enables us to grow together with our

employees.

WITH SOCIETY

As corporate citizens, we will contribute to

society not only by prospering in business

but also by proactively supporting both the

development of cultural activities, includ-

ing the arts and sport, and the preservation

of the global environment.

■  INSTILLING AWARENESS THROUGH-

OUT THE GROUP

The SEGA SAMMY Group believes that it

is important for each employee of the

Group to recognize the importance of

CSR activities as their own personal issue

and to act voluntarily and proactively. To

that end, the Group considers, plans, and

implements actions to spread CSR aware-

ness in line with the level of understand-

ing of employees. A specific example of

such an action is the CSR message that the

representative director of the Company

relays to employees. By consistently con-

veying the significance of corporate social

responsibility to employees, its impor-

tance becomes firmly embedded in their

consciousness. At Group companies, the

presidents deliver the same message to

their employees, resulting in a collective

effort by Group management to achieve a

common awareness among employees.

Among other efforts, we have created a

handbook on basic CSR knowledge that

contains concrete examples and is distrib-

uted to all employees. We also have placed

posters in all our domestic offices empha-

sizing the importance of our relationship

with stakeholders. We further utilize vari-

ous media and communications tools to

provide constant reminders of the impor-

tance of corporate social responsibility.

For example, we have collected CSR-relat-

ed information on our intranet, making it

accessible by employees, and we continu-

ally feature CSR items in our in-house

communications.

C S R *C S R *C S R
Corporate Social Responsibility

The SEGA SAMMY Group considers the fulfillment of its corporate social

responsibility (CSR) to be a top priority management issue. Accordingly,

in April 2005, the Company formed the CSR Promotion Department.

In June 2005, the Company established the CSR Promotion Committee,

for which the CSR Department acts as a secretariat. Under the SEGA

SAMMY Group CSR Charter, established to provide guiding principles

for business operations, the Group pursues CSR activities on an inter-

company basis.Through these activities, the Group aims to achieve 

sustained growth in corporate value and to contribute to the sustained

development of society.

CSR poster (left) and SEGA SAMMY Group CSR Handbook 

distributed to employees (right)



39ANNUAL REPORT 2006

The unpredictability of the outcome of

sports events has given rise to much drama,

which in turn has provided dreams and

excitement for spectators and players alike. 

At times, sport can represent an ultimate

goal; at times it is simply a part of our daily

life – for reasons of health or amusement. 

In any case, sport has an irreplaceable role

in our lives, contributing to the formation

of our characters depending on how we

incorporate it into our interests in life. 

As an entertainment Group, the SEGA

SAMMY Group sees sport as an important

method of communicating its management

philosophy of “providing entertainment

filled with dreams and excitement to peo-

ple throughout the world.” We sponsor 

various sporting activities not only through

our business activities but also through the

activities of our sports clubs, such as our

baseball and track teams. 

The Group is committed to further 

contributing to the development of sports 

culture.

SOCIAL CONTRIBUTION ACTIVITIES

The SEGA SAMMY Group is strongly aware

of its position as a member of the global

society and seeks to be a responsible cor-

porate citizen. By basing our corporate

social responsibility efforts on the motto

“by providing entertainment filled with

dreams and excitement to people through-

out the world, we will strive to enrich our

society and culture,” we endeavor to meet 

society’s level of expectations in terms of

ethics and contribution to the public good. 

Through ongoing social contribution

activities by the entire SEGA SAMMY

Group, such as the support of sporting and

arts activities, we aim to build a relation-

ship of trust with society and to contribute

to realizing a more prosperous society and

to “creating culture.” 

SPONSORSHIP AND SUPPORT OF 

THE ARTS 

Art that has been passed down through his-

tory, works of art that reflect their periods, 

and theatrical arts that hold their audiences

captive with detailed plots – the arts are truly

“entertainment” and indispensable to the 

realization of a prosperous society and the 

“creation of culture.” 

Toward the realization of its management

philosophy, the SEGA SAMMY Group carries 

out a variety of activities to support the devel-

opment of the arts. The Group also conducts

activities to introduce traditional Japanese cul-

ture, outstanding art from abroad, and new 

cultures to the public. 

Tokyo JAZZ 2005, the fourth year of Japan’s biggest jazz event

Highland Fling, directed and choreographed by Matthew

Bourne, renowned as a wizard of the ballet world

NATURAL DISASTER RELIEF ACTIVITIES 

From the perspective of a global society, the

SEGA SAMMY Group undertakes a variety of

relief and support activities not only in Japan

but around the world. These activities include

support for disabled people and social contri-

bution activities through sporting events and

other activities in addition to aid and donations

in times of disaster. For example, the Group

made donations to assist the victims of the

major hurricane Katrina that devastated parts 

of the southern United States in August 2005. 

The SEGA SAMMY Cup Golf Tournament – the ultimate 

golf entertainment presented by the SEGA SAMMY Group

The Boys’ Baseball Course, part of our sports promotion

program

The Group is a special sponsor of Nagashima JAPAN Dream

Project 2006, a communication event that enables children

from across Japan to spend time with the members of the

Nagashima JAPAN baseball team

The SEGA SAMMY track team participated in the Nagoya

International Women’s Marathon

SPONSORSHIP AND SUPPORT OF SPORTING ACTIVITIES
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MARKETDATA

2001 2002 2003 2004 2005

Rank Manufacturer Share Manufacturer Share Manufacturer Share Manufacturer Share Manufacturer Share

1 Sammy 32.8% Sammy 31.1% Sammy 32.1% Sammy 40.4% Sammy 33.6%

2 Yamasa 17.8% Yamasa 20.0% Olympia 18.5% Olympia 16.4% Daito Giken 13.1%

3 Aruze 16.2% Aruze 19.7% Aruze 13.6% Yamasa 9.0% Olympia 10.4%

4 Olympia 8.5% Olympia 11.7% Yamasa 11.9% Daito Giken 7.9% Yamasa 8.3%

5 Pioneer 5.0% Pioneer 3.7% Daito Giken 4.9% Aruze 4.6% SANKYO 6.2%

Source: Yano Research Institute Ltd.

2001 2002 2003 2004 2005

Rank Manufacturer Share Manufacturer Share Manufacturer Share Manufacturer Share Manufacturer Share

1 Sanyo Bussan 18.9% Sanyo Bussan 16.4% Sanyo Bussan 25.2% Sanyo Bussan 22.9% Sanyo Bussan 24.7%

2 SANKYO 17.2% SANKYO 14.8% SANKYO 16.4% SANKYO 21.2% SANKYO 18.3%

3 Heiwa 10.8% Heiwa 10.0% Daiichi Shokai 9.5% Heiwa 8.7% Kyoraku Sangyo 9.6%

4 Daiichi Shokai 10.3% Kyoraku Sangyo 8.1% Heiwa 7.1% Daiichi Shokai 7.7% Newgin 7.9%

5 Kyoraku Sangyo 7.6% Daiichi Shokai 7.9% Sammy 6.7% Newgin 6.9% Sammy 7.1%

Sammy 2.8% Sammy 2.6% Sammy 5.8%

Source: Yano Research Institute Ltd.

2001 2002 2003 2004 2005

Pachislot machines Machine sales (units) 1,290,719 1,501,894 1,842,392 1,675,049 1,804,292

Machines installed (units) 1,459,233 1,606,123 1,660,839 1,887,239 1,936,476

Market size (millions of yen) 351,344 396,566 526,354 524,882 543,049

Pachinko machines Machine sales (units) 3,230,489 3,174,079 3,686,677 4,012,901 4,047,427

Machines installed (units) 3,326,583 3,252,241 3,227,239 3,077,537 2,960,939

Market size (millions of yen) 569,129 561,506 672,055 786,413 867,209

Sources: National Police Agency (machines installed) and Yano Research Institute Ltd. (machine sales and market size)

2001 2002 2003 2004 2005

Number of pachinko halls with pachinko machines installed 15,691 15,255 14,695 13,844 12,913

Number of pachinko halls with pachislot machines installed 1,110 1,249 1,381 1,773 2,252

Total 16,801 16,504 16,076 15,617 15,165

Source: National Police Agency. 

Number of pachinko halls with pachinko machines installed includes facilities that combine installations of pachinko machines, pachislot machines, arrange-ball machines, and other machines.
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2001 2002 2003 2004

Net sales of amusement machines 140.8 154.5 177.9 180.6

Net sales from amusement center operations 590.3 605.5 637.7 649.2

Sources: JAMMA, AOU, and NSA. Sales figures for 2005 are not disclosed by survey organizations.

AMUSEMENT MACHINES AND AMUSEMENT CENTER OPERATIONS MARKET SIZE Billions of yen

2002 2003 2004 2005

Hardware shipments 787.7 704.5 440.7 872.7

Software shipments 474.7 429.9 468.4 487.1

Source: 2006 CESA Games White Paper, Home Game Shipments 

HOME VIDEOGAME SOFTWARE MARKET SIZE Billions of yen

2000 (estimated) 2001 (estimated) 2002 (estimated) 2003 (estimated) 2004 (estimated) 2005 (estimated)

Packaged visual content 214.1 286.3 356.6 448.3 543.5 708.8

Network visual content 0.0 1.0 3.9 14.7 17.3 29.2

Source: Based on Digital Content White Paper 2006

DOMESTIC VISUAL CONTENT MARKET SIZE Billions of yen

1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004

Domestic shipments 1,057.6 973.9 1,044.3 1,012.0 958.0 952.0

Domestic retail sales 1,477.4 1,319.0 1,372.3 1,299.1 1,224.3 1,214.9

Source: Yano Research Institute Ltd.

DOMESTIC TOY MARKET SIZE (INCLUDING HOME GAME CONSOLES AND GAME SOFTWARE) Billions of yen

2000 (estimated) 2001 (estimated) 2002 (estimated) 2003 (estimated) 2004 (estimated) 2005 (estimated)

Mobile phone content 44.8 119.6 175.8 205.7 233.0 266.5

Visual content 6.5 17.1 26.6 27.4 31.4 58.9

Music content 13.4 73.6 95.8 112.9 136.8 161.0

Game content 2.6 9.0 20.1 27.0 41.2 58.9

Textual content 22.3 41.5 52.1 54.2 56.3 61.9

Source: Based on Digital Content White Paper 2006

MOBILE PHONE CONTENT MARKET SIZE Billions of yen
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Results of Operations in the Fiscal Year

Ended March 31, 2006

■  OVERVIEW

In the fiscal year under review, the Group

recorded a favorable performance in each

business segment, achieving the highest

level of sales and profits since the manage-

ment integration. The initiatives that we

have implemented to bolster our profit

structure had marked results, with the

Consumer Business becoming profitable

in just a year and a half since the manage-

ment integration. By reorganizing our

operations and acquiring promising com-

panies, we reinforced our growth founda-

tion. In the year under review, these initia-

tives included the following: 

Concentrating operations to increase

efficiency

On April 1, 2005, SEGA absorbed the

Group’s overlapping operations, such

as Sammy’s amusement machine

sales and home videogame software

businesses, through a corporate sepa-

ration. This step was taken to allow

Sammy to focus its resources on the

Pachislot and Pachinko Machine

Business and peripheral equipment.

On April 1, 2005, to integrate the

functions of Amusement Center

Operations that were dispersed

throughout the Group and to more

closely coordinate the Amusement

Machine Sales Business and Amuse-

ment Center Operations, SEGA

AMUSEMENT CO., LTD., and

Sammy Amusement Service Co.,

Ltd., were merged into SEGA.

On September 1, 2005, to rationalize

and raise the efficiency of commer-

cial amusement machine develop-

ment, manufacturing, and sales in

North America, SEGA AMUSE-

MENTS U.S.A., Inc., and Sammy

U.S.A. Corporation were merged.

Strengthening operational foundation

in growth fields and new fields

On August 2, 2005, to meet diverse

customer needs by providing total

pachinko hall services and expand

sales opportunities, Sammy acquired

shares of H-I System Corporation,

which specializes in hall computers

and prize POS systems, and made it a

consolidated subsidiary.

To strengthen its imaging business,

the Company accumulated shares

of equity-method affiliate TMS

ENTERTAINMENT, LTD., and it

was made a consolidated subsidiary

on October 7, 2005. 

On October 26, 2005, Sammy made

GINZA Co., Ltd., a consolidated sub-

sidiary to reinforce the development

of multiple brands in the Pachislot

and Pachinko Machine Business.

■  NET SALES

In the fiscal year ended March 31, 2006,

net sales rose 7.3%, to ¥553.2 billion.

Strong contributions were made by the

Amusement Machine Sales Business,

which recorded favorable shipments of

large-scale, high-value-added products;
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Amusement Center Operations, which

registered higher sales at existing centers

and favorable performances in children’s

card games; and the Consumer Business,

which benefited from the results of devel-

opment system reorganization measures

and aggressive acquisitions overseas. 

■  OPERATING INCOME

In addition to favorable performances in

each business segment, the Pachislot and

Pachinko Machine Business reduced the

cost of sales through active reuse of parts.

Additionally, sales commissions, which are

included in SG&A expenses, declined due

to an increase in the percentage of direct

sales. These improvements offset higher

advertising and promotion expenses, and

operating income rose 13.4%, to ¥119.1 bil-

lion. The operating margin improved 1.1

percentage points, to 21.5%. 

The top three contributions to the

increase in operating income were made

by the Consumer Business, the Amuse-

ment Machine Sales Business, and Amuse-

ment Center Operations. The largest sin-

gle contribution was from the Consumer

Business, which became profitable in the

year under review, recording an improve-

ment of ¥10.8 billion from the previous

fiscal year’s operating loss of ¥8.8 billion.

Next, in the Amusement Machine Sales

Business, which registered growth in sales

of high-value-added products, operating

income increased ¥4.8 billion. Third, in

Amusement Center Operations, which

increased the efficiency of centers and 

registered favorable performances in 

children’s card games, operating income

increased ¥3.8 billion. 

■  OTHER INCOME (EXPENSES)

Net other expenses were ¥7.2 billion, com-

pared with net other expenses of ¥15.6

billion in the previous fiscal year. Major

items were impairment losses of ¥7.2

billion, principally for certain amusement

centers, while loss on business reorganiza-

tion, stemming from reorganization meas-

ures implemented after the management

integration, declined to ¥0.3 billion, from

¥2.9 billion in the previous fiscal year, and

loss on redemption of bonds, which was

¥10.6 billion in the previous year, was not

recorded in the year under review. 

■  NET INCOME

Income before income taxes and minority

interests increased 25.1%, to ¥111.9 billion,

and net income was up 30.9%, to ¥66.2 bil-

lion. The net margin improved 2.2 percent-

age points, to 12.0%, and ROE increased to

23.0%, from 19.5% in the previous year.

■  OVERVIEW BY SEGMENT

Pachislot and Pachinko Machine

Business

In the pachislot machine business, Sammy

recorded strong sales of major old-format

machines, including ALADDIN II Evo-

lution, a Sammy brand pachislot machine

based on the ALADDIN character that has

become synonymous with Sammy, and Ore

No Sora, a RODEO brand pachislot

machine. Sammy also actively developed

and supplied new-format pachislot

machines. As a result, pachislot machine

sales totaled 607 thousand units. Sales

declined by 70 thousand units from the

previous fiscal year, when the Sammy

brand Hokuto No Ken pachislot machine

became the biggest hit in the history of the

industry. Nonetheless, with our continued

strengths in development, we maintained

our top market share. 

In the pachinko machine business, we

provided a stable supply of hit products,

such as CR-Hokuto No Ken, which has

become Sammy’s all-time top-selling

pachinko machine. We are beginning to

see results from the initiatives that we have

implemented to bolster our development

capabilities, and our sales increased by 56

thousand units from the previous fiscal

year, to 289 thousand. 

In the year under review, we entered a

capital and business tie-up with GINZA

Co., Ltd., which develops, manufactures,

and sells pachislot and pachinko machines.

The purpose of this tie-up was to further

strengthen our pachislot machine business

and to bolster our multi-brand strategy in

the pachinko machine business. In addi-

tion, we strengthened our total pachinko

hall services when we made H-I System

Corporation, a company that specializes in

hall computers and prize POS systems, a

subsidiary.

Net sales in the Pachislot and Pachinko

Machine Business declined 5.2%, to

¥265.6 billion, and operating income was

down 3.9%, to ¥99.8 billion. The operat-

ing margin improved from 37.1% in the

previous fiscal year to 37.6% in the fiscal
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year under review, following a decline in

sales commissions paid to sales agents due

to an increase in the percentage of direct

sales and lower cost of sales due to the

reuse of parts. 

Amusement Machine Sales Business

Demand for prize games and other exist-

ing products experienced a cyclical down-

turn, but we recorded strong sales of high-

value-added products – SEGA’s strength –

such as Sangokushi Taisen, a network-

enabled card action game machine, and

StarHorse2 NEW GENERATION, a large-

scale medal game machine. In addition,

sales of certain OEM products were solid. 

As a result, the segment recorded sub-

stantial increases in sales and profits, with

net sales rising 13.0%, to ¥71.5 billion, and

operating income up 64.0%, to ¥12.2

billion. The segment’s profitability rose

substantially, with the operating margin

increasing to 17.0%, from 11.7% in the

previous fiscal year. Major reasons for this

strong performance included a reduction

in lost sales opportunities due to stronger

production and distribution systems and

enhanced cooperation with Amusement

Center Operations. 

Amusement Center Operations

Due to the revitalization of centers

through scrap-and-build initiatives and

the adoption of highly popular amuse-

ment machines, sales at existing amuse-

ment centers rose 3.3%. Moreover, The

King of Beetles “MUSHIKING” and LOVE

AND BERRY Dress Up and Dance! record-

ed solid growth in both installed machines

and number of cards sold. As a result, the

segment’s net sales were up 27.7%, to

¥106.2 billion. 

In addition to the gain in sales, the

initiatives that we took to increase the effi-

ciency of amusement center operations by

concentrating the Group’s amusement

center related businesses in SEGA also

contributed to an increase in operating

income, which was up 68.9%, to ¥9.2 bil-

lion. The operating margin also recorded

solid improvement, increasing from 6.6%

in the previous year to 8.7% in the year

under review. 

In the year under review we opened 14

new amusement centers and closed 52

existing amusement centers. The total

number of centers at the end of the period

stood at 462, a decrease of 15 from the

previous fiscal-year end. The total number

of centers as of the end of the March 2006

fiscal year includes facilities operated by

TMS entertainment, which was made a

subsidiary during the period. 
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Best-Selling Pachislot and Pachinko Machine Models

Pachislot Machines 2005 2006
Brand Model Name Unit Sales Brand Model Name Unit Sales 

Sammy Hokuto No Ken 356,820 Sammy ALADDIN II Evolution 148,979

RODEO Onimusha 3 69,341 RODEO Ore No Sora 100,497

Sammy Popeye 60,191 Sammy Ultraman Club ST 77,378

RODEO Umematsu Paradise 36,590 Sammy Pachislot Umimonogatari 63,924

RODEO Gamera High Grade Vision 31,121 RODEO Onimusha 3 51,097

Unit Supply 94,700 Unit Supply 135,118

Pachinko Machines 2005 2006
Model Name Unit Sales Model Name Unit Sales 

CR-Hakushon Daimao 2 60,089 CR-Hokuto No Ken 178,579

CR-Popeye 41,579 CR-ChoroQ 30,066

CR-Ore No Sora 30,245 CR-Sakigake Otokojuku 29,309

CR-Rinda No Dounimotomaranai 25,887 CR-ChoroQ Turbo 27,929

CR-Mermaid Zabun 20,204 CR-Azumi 9,745
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Consumer Business

In packaged game software, the main busi-

ness in this segment, we have taken a

number of steps since the management

integration. In Japan, we have implement-

ed reorganization measures targeting rig-

orous control of development schedules

and quality and clarifying profit-and-loss

responsibility. Overseas, we have aggres-

sively acquired promising development

companies to bolster our local develop-

ment capabilities. 

In the year under review, these initiatives

produced clear results in the form of higher

revenues and reduced costs. The segment’s

net sales were up 38.3%, to ¥90.4 billion,

and the segment turned profitable, record-

ing operating income of ¥2.0 billion, com-

pared with an operating loss of ¥8.8 billion

in the previous fiscal year. Unit sales of

packaged game software reached 16.4 mil-

lion units, an increase of 4.6 million units

from the previous fiscal year. Unit sales

recorded especially strong growth in Europe

and North America. This growth was attrib-

utable to solid sales of our mainstay Sonic

series products and to the rapid emergence

of the benefits of our aggressive acquisi-

tions. For example, sales of titles developed

by The Creative Assembly Limited, which

we acquired, exceeded 1 million units. 

Favorable performances were recorded

in the fields of toys, content for mobile

phones, and animations. In particular, toy

operations generated higher sales and prof-

its, as our lineup of products targeting a

wide range of age groups was well received

in a challenging market environment.

Others

This segment comprises the planning,

design, construction, and management of

commercial facilities and commercial

karaoke sales. In the year under review,

net sales were down 17.8%, to ¥19.5 bil-

lion, and an operating loss of ¥1.7 billion

was recorded, compared with a loss of

¥0.5 billion in the previous fiscal year. 

Financial Position and Liquidity

■  FINANCIAL POSITION

Total assets at the end of the fiscal year

were ¥522.9 billion, up ¥83.9 billion from

the end of the previous fiscal year. This

increase was primarily attributable to

higher notes and accounts receivable

accompanying favorable sales through the

end of the fiscal year and to an increase in

the number of consolidated subsidiaries,

including TMS ENTERTAINMENT.

Total current liabilities were ¥137.4 bil-

lion, an increase of ¥27.1 billion. This

increase was primarily attributable to

higher notes and accounts payable and

income taxes payable. As a result,

although the current ratio was 2.4 times,

compared with 2.6 times at the end of the

previous fiscal year, it nonetheless

remained at a high level. Total long-term

liabilities were down ¥11.7 billion, to

¥49.6 billion, due primarily to a decline in

long-term debt.

Shareholders’ equity was ¥316.7 billion,

an increase of ¥57.7 billion. Dividends

paid were ¥13.8 billion, while net income

was ¥66.2 billion. As a result, retained

earnings at year-end were up ¥60.0 billion. 

The shareholders’ equity ratio was up

1.6 percentage points, to 60.6%. Share-

holders’ equity per share was ¥1,254.14,

compared with ¥2,067.91 a year earlier.*

* On November 18, 2005, the Company implemented a 2-for-1 stock split.

11.0%

89.0%

19.0%

81.0%

Pachislot and Pachinko Machine Business

All other businesses

* Contribution to total operating income by each segment 

   recording operating income.

Improved Profit Structure* – Operating Income

2006

2005

Sales of Major Game Software

2005 2006
Unit Sales Unit Sales

Platform Title (Thousands) Platform Title (Thousands)

PS2/Xbox/GC Sonic Heroes 1,570 PS2/Xbox/GC SHADOW THE HEDGEHOG 1,590

PS2 JISSEN PACHISLOT HISSHOUHOU! Hokuto No Ken 1,160 PS2/Xbox/GC Sonic Riders 930

GC Sonic Mega Collection 860 GBA/NDS The King of Beetles “MUSHIKING,” 890
The Road to the Greatest Champion

PS2/Xbox Sonic Mega Collection Plus 1,000 PS2/Xbox/GC Spartan: Total Warrior 640

PC Football Manager 570 PC Football Manager 2006 630
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■  CAPITAL EXPENDITURES

In the year under review, capital expendi-

tures totaled ¥37.7 billion, compared with

¥32.5 billion in the previous fiscal year.

Major investment items included ¥6.7 bil-

lion for the acquisition of a site for a new

factory for use by Sammy in Kawagoe

City, Saitama Prefecture, and ¥24.6 billion

in investment in amusement centers oper-

ated by SEGA.

■  CASH FLOWS

Net cash provided by operating activities

was ¥83.2 billion. Income before income

taxes and minority interests was ¥111.9

billion, and payment of income taxes was

¥45.8 billion. 

Net cash used in investing activities was

¥54.7 billion. Payment for purchase of

property, plant and equipment was ¥26.3

billion, and payment for investment in

partnerships was ¥24.7 billion. 

Net cash used in financing activities was

¥21.2 billion. Cash dividends paid totaled

¥13.8 billion, and repayment of long-term

debt was ¥9.8 billion.

As a result, cash and cash equivalents at

end of year totaled ¥160.1 billion, an

increase of ¥8.8 billion from the previous

fiscal year-end.

■  INTRODUCTION OF CASH 

MANAGEMENT SYSTEM

In November 2005, SEGA SAMMY

HOLDINGS, Sammy, and SEGA intro-

duced a cash management system to inte-

grate and increase the efficiency of the

Group’s fund-raising and asset manage-

ment. The Group also concluded a ¥50.0

billion commitment line contract to bol-

ster the functionality of the cash manage-

ment system and enhance liquidity over

the medium to long term. Taking into

account the Group’s future overseas busi-

ness development, the commitment line

contract is provided by a total of nine

banks, including not only the six domestic

banks with which we currently have trans-

action relationships but also three overseas

banks.

■  RESULTS OF OPERATIONS OF LISTED

SUBSIDIARIES

SEGA TOYS, LTD.

In the run up to Christmas and the New

Year, which is the peak period for the toy

market, the home planetarium system

Home Star became a hit product that sold

well in large numbers of stores and over

the Internet and ended up selling out in

many locations. In addition, the company

generated SEGA SAMMY Group synergies

and recorded favorable performances with

products drawing on The King of Beetles

“MUSHIKING,” such as RC Battle and

Battle Venture.

As a result, in the fiscal year under re-

view SEGA TOYS recorded net sales of

¥14.4 billion, an increase of 40.2%; oper-

ating income of ¥1.1 billion, up 77.0%;

and net income of ¥0.6 billion, an increase

of 45.5%. 

TMS ENTERTAINMENT, LTD.

In animations, TMS ENTERTAINMENT

worked to enhance its animation content,

targeting future revenues and profits, and

took steps to establish a foundation for

revenues and profits through comprehen-

sive operational development with licens-

ing-related and content-related areas.

Moreover, in amusement centers, the spe-

cial strengths of the TMS ENTERTAIN-

MENT group were fully utilized.

As a result, TMS ENTERTAINMENT

recorded a record high level of net sales,

which were up 18.2%, to ¥16.2 billion.

Due to higher costs in animations and

amusement, operating income was down

15.8%, to ¥1.7 billion, and net income was

down 12.3%, to ¥1.3 billion.

Sammy NetWorks Co., Ltd.

With markets for some of Sammy Net-

Works’ core businesses, such as ring tones,

contracting, the company worked to

expand and maintain its existing business-

es, such as pachinko and pachislot games

for mobile phones and ring tones. In addi-

tion, the company took aggressive steps to

develop content distribution services for

platforms other than mobile phones, such

as PCs, and to develop these services into a

new pillar of its operations. 

As a result, Sammy NetWorks recorded

net sales of ¥8.3 billion, operating income

of ¥2.2 billion, and net income of ¥1.3 bil-

lion. The year under review was the first

year in which Sammy NetWorks prepared

consolidated financial statements. 

NISSHO INTER LIFE CO., LTD.*

NISSHO INTER LIFE worked to expand

revenue and profit, implementing three

organizational reforms targeting higher

profitability and securing an increase in

orders in the entertainment field, drawing

on SEGA SAMMY Group synergies. In the

second half of the fiscal year, there was a

delay in the adoption of policies and

strategies and in framework improvement

within the construction business. As a

result, the company’s efforts to reduce

costs stalled and the gross profit margin

for the full fiscal year did not improve.

For the fiscal year, NISSHO INTER

LIFE recorded net sales of ¥16.2 billion, an

operating loss of ¥0.4 billion, and a net

loss of ¥0.4 billion.

* At the NISSHO INTER LIFE Ordinary General Meeting of Shareholders 

held on August 19, 2004, the company’s articles of incorporation were

amended and the fiscal year-end was changed from May 20 to March 20.

As a result, the fiscal year prior to the year under review covered the 

10-month period from May 21, 2004, to March 20, 2005. Accordingly, 

for the fiscal year under review, comparisons with the previous fiscal 

year have not been made.
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Risks that could affect the performance or

operations of the SEGA SAMMY Group

are given below. Further, the following is

not a comprehensive list of the operational

risks faced by the Group. However, based

on an awareness of the following risks, the

Group implements measures to prevent

the occurrence of incidents arising from

those risks and to respond to such inci-

dents in the event of their occurrence. In

addition, forward-looking statements in

the following text are the judgments of the

Group as of March 31, 2006.

Statutory Regulations Affecting 

the Pachislot and Pachinko Machine

Business

Among the Group’s mainstay operations,

the Pachislot and Pachinko Machine

Business account for a significant portion

of net sales and income. In particular, this

segment generates the greater part of the

Group’s total operating income. Further,

the segment’s sales are substantially influ-

enced by user preferences. As a result, the

segment tends to rely on the sales of spe-

cific machine models. In addition, prod-

ucts sold must conform to the technical

specifications stipulated by National

Public Safety Commission rules (regula-

tions for the verification of licenses, for-

mats, and other aspects of pachislot and

pachinko machines), which are based on

the amended Entertainment Establish-

ments Control Law of Japan enacted on

February 13, 1985.

Also, in July 2004 revisions were enact-

ed to regulations pertaining to the

Entertainment Establishments Control

Law that mainly curb the payout charac-

teristics and prevent the improper use of

pachislot and pachinko machines. 

Such regulatory revisions, the progress

of new-machine development, the

requirements of format examinations and

official licenses, product malfunctions,

user preferences, and the sales trends of

competitors’ products could have a signif-

icant impact on the Group’s performance

or operations.

Shortness of Product Life Cycles

Due to the short time required for the

production of pachislot and pachinko

machines, the Group usually produces

machines in response to order trends.

Because the marketing period is generally

short, product shipments are concentrated

in the initial period after product launch-

es. Accordingly, the Group procures cer-

tain raw materials in advance. However,

the Group may not be able to procure suf-

ficient raw materials for production in

response to large order volumes in the ini-

tial period after product launches. 

Comparatively, the time required for

the production of amusement machines is

long. Consequently, the Group produces

those machines based on demand estima-

tes. However, demand for products could

change due to shifts in user preferences.

Home videogame software is suscepti-

ble to changes in seasonal demand, which

focuses on such periods as the run up to

Christmas and the New Year. If the Group

is unable to supply new products during

such selling periods, surplus inventory

could result. 

To mitigate risks associated with such

inventories, the Group takes measures that

include the use of common components,

the shortening of lead times for compo-

nents procurement, and the strengthening

of inventory asset management. However,

losses stemming from the disposal of

inventory assets could result due to sales

results that fall short of projections.

Entry into Overseas Markets

The Group conducts operations in over-

seas markets, including markets in North

America, Europe, and Asia. The Group

plans to increase sales in overseas markets

centered on the Amusement Machine

Sales Business, Amusement Center

Operations, and the Consumer Business.

As a result, fluctuation in foreign currency

exchange rates could affect the Group’s

performance or operations. Further, the

Group could be affected by a deterioration

in the international geopolitical situation

related to such factors as overseas wars,

conflicts, and terrorist incidents.

Adoption of Asset-Impairment

Accounting

In the fiscal year ending March of 2006, the

company adopted asset-impairment

accounting. Depending on shifts in busi-

ness conditions and future cash flows, the

Company may be unable to recoup the

value of certain investments and would be

required to record a loss. If such a case were

to occur, it could have a material adverse

effect on the Company’s operating results.

Management of Personal Information

The Group holds personal information

relating to the users of its products and

services due to such activities as the opera-

tion of membership-based web sites. In

light of the enactment of the Act for

Protection of Computer Processed

Personal Data Held by Administrative

Organs, the Group is strengthening the

rigor of its personal information manage-

ment. However, in the unlikely event of a

leakage of personal information or the

misuse of such personal information, the

resulting loss of trust or lawsuits filed

against the Group could affect its per-

formance or operations.

Lawsuits

The Group implements measures to mini-

mize the risk of having claims for damages

and other lawsuits filed against the Group

by strengthening its compliance systems

and by exercising sufficient care to avoid

the infringement of the intellectual prop-

erty of third parties. However, lawsuits

could be filed against the Group claiming

that products manufactured and sold by

the Group infringe upon rights.

OPERATIONALRISKS
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Consolidated Balance Sheets
SEGA SAMMY HOLDINGS INC. AND CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES

As of March 31, 2006 and 2005

Thousands of
Millions of yen U.S. dollars

ASSETS 2006 2005 2006

Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents ¥160,094 ¥151,253 $1,362,850

Time deposits (Note 4) 926 1,024 7,883

Trade receivables:

Notes and accounts receivable (Notes 4 and 7) 96,728 76,922 823,427

Allowance for doubtful accounts (1,494) (1,892) (12,718)

Marketable securities 2,999 – 25,530

Inventories (Note 3) 32,200 32,002 274,113

Income taxes refundable (Note 10) 15,656 – 133,277

Deferred income taxes (Note10) 6,277 6,024 53,435

Other current assets 17,945 17,129 152,761

Total current assets 331,331 282,462 2,820,558

Property, plant and equipment:

Land (Note 4) 20,699 22,258 176,207

Buildings and structures (Note 4) 57,171 48,469 486,686

Amusement machines and facilities 57,411 43,375 488,729

Construction in progress 1,840 1,220 15,664

Others 28,205 23,358 240,103

165,326 138,680 1,407,389

Accumulated depreciation (82,672) (65,492) (703,771)

82,654 73,188 703,618

Investments and other assets:

Investments in unconsolidated subsidiaries and affiliated companies 4,150 9,371 35,328

Investments in securities (Notes 11 and 12) 55,890 34,419 475,781

Goodwill 11,267 3,405 95,914

Lease deposits 18,073 19,118 153,852

Deferred income taxes (Note 10) 804 500 6,844

Others 27,207 26,073 231,608

Allowance for doubtful accounts (8,462) (9,545) (72,035)

108,929 83,341 927,292

¥522,914 ¥438,991 $4,451,468

See accompanying notes.
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Thousands of
Millions of yen U.S. dollars

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY 2006 2005 2006

Current liabilities:

Short-term bank loans and current portion of long-term debt (Note 4) ¥  10,395  ¥   13,301  $     88,491

Notes and accounts payable–trade (Note 4) 62,133 57,140 528,927

Income taxes payable (Note 10) 29,222 12,508 248,761

Accrued employees’ bonuses 1,871 1,722 15,927

Other current liabilities (Note 4) 33,732 25,597 287,154

Total current liabilities 137,353 110,268 1,169,260

Long-term liabilities:

Long-term debt (Note 4) 29,218 42,229 248,727

Retirement benefits for employees (Note 6) 7,491 6,037 63,769

Retirement benefits for directors and corporate auditors 1,277 1,162 10,871

Deferred income taxes (Note 10) 4,488 5,400 38,206

Other non-current liabilities 7,095 6,437 60,399

Total long-term liabilities 49,569 61,265 421,972

Minority interests 19,312 8,504 164,399

Contingent liabilities (Note 7)

Shareholders’ equity (Note 8):

Common stock 29,953 27,291 254,984

Authorized – 400,000,000 shares in 2005 and

800,000,000 shares in 2006

Issued – 140,551,522 shares in 2005 and

283,229,476 shares in 2006

Capital surplus 171,071 176,302 1,456,295

Retained earnings 193,721 133,761 1,649,110

Revaluation reserve for land (Note 9) (7,506) (6,542) (63,897)

Net unrealized holding gains on securities 11,757 10,793 100,085

Foreign currency translation adjustments (8,767) (9,425) (74,631)

390,229 332,180 3,321,946

Treasury stock, at cost (73,549) (73,226) (626,109)

Total shareholders’ equity 316,680 258,954 2,695,837

¥522,914 ¥438,991 $4,451,468
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Thousands of
Millions of yen U.S. dollars

2006 2005 2006

Net sales ¥553,241 ¥515,668 $4,709,637

Cost of sales 324,229 304,109 2,760,100

Gross profit 229,012 211,559 1,949,537

Selling, general and administrative expenses (Note 13) 109,868 106,469 935,287

Operating income 119,144 105,090 1,014,250

Other income (expenses):

Interest and dividend income 1,101 760 9,373

Interest expenses (634) (803) (5,397)

Equity in (losses) earnings of affiliated companies (230) 25 (1,958)

Gain on investments in partnership 1,066 1,189 9,075

Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment – net (169) (448) (1,439)

Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment (818) (908) (6,963)

Loss on revaluation of investment securities (854) (1,040) (7,270)

Gain on change in equity of consolidated subsidiaries 1,066 2,252 9,075

Gain on sale of operations (Note 14) 27 743 229 

Impairment losses (Note 16) (7,195) (325) (61,250)

Loss on business reorganization (Note 15) (318) (2,945) (2,707)

Loss on redemption of bonds – (10,606) –

Other – net (262) (3,502) (2,231)

(7,220) (15,608) (61,463)

Income before income taxes and minority interests 111,924 89,482 952,787

Income taxes (Note 10):

Current 46,796 32,437 398,366

Deferred (3,018) 5,652 (25,692)

43,778 38,089 372,674

Income before minority interests 68,146 51,393 580,113

Minority interests 1,924 819 16,378

Net income ¥ 66,222 ¥  50,574 $ 563,735

Yen U.S. dollars

Per share of common stock (Note 21):

Net income ¥261.06 ¥410.53 $2.22

Diluted net income 260.35 400.95 2.22

Cash dividends applicable to the year 80.00 60.00 0.68

See accompanying notes.

Consolidated Statements of Income
SEGA SAMMY HOLDINGS INC. AND CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES

Years ended March 31, 2006 and 2005
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Thousands of
Millions of yen U.S. dollars

2006 2005 2006

Common stock:
Beginning balance ¥   27,291 ¥   10,000 $ 232,323
Increase in capital stock 2,662 17,291 22,661
Ending balance ¥   29,953 ¥ 27,291 $ 254,984

Capital surplus:
Beginning balance ¥176,302 ¥154,340 $1,500,826
Increase

Increase in capital stock 2,660 17,286 22,644
Gain on sale of treasury stock 7 3 60
Increase in capital stock by wholly owned subsidiary before share transfer – 2,847 –
Gain on sale of treasury stock by wholly owned subsidiary before share transfer – 1,826 –

Total 2,667 21,962 22,704
Decrease

Cash dividends 7,498 – 63,830
Bonuses to directors and corporate auditors 180 – 1,532
Transfer of capital surplus to retained earnings 220 – 1,873

Total 7,898 – 67,235
Ending balance ¥171,071 ¥176,302 $1,456,295

Retained earnings:
Beginning balance ¥133,761 ¥101,838 $1,138,682
Increase

Net income 66,222 50,574 563,735
Reversal of land revaluation difference 2 277 17
Increase resulting from increase in consolidated subsidiaries and
affiliates under the equity method 194 1,911 1,651

Transfer of capital surplus to retained earnings 220 – 1,873
Total 66,638 52,762 567,276

Decrease
Cash dividends 6,278 7,433 53,443
Bonuses to directors and corporate auditors 373 525 3,175
Loss on sale of treasury stock by wholly owned subsidiary before share transfer – 2,525 –
Decrease in treasury stock by wholly owned subsidiary before share transfer – 10,356 –
Decrease resulting from decrease in consolidated subsidiaries and
affiliates under the equity method 27 – 230

Total 6,678 20,839 56,848
Ending balance ¥193,721 ¥133,761 $1,649,110

Revaluation reserve for land:
Beginning balance ¥ (6,542) ¥    (6,265) $     (55,691)
Reversal of land revaluation difference (964) (277) (8,206)
Ending balance ¥ (7,506) ¥    (6,542) $     (63,897)

Net unrealized gains on securities:
Beginning balance ¥ 10,793 ¥   11,841 $ 91,879
Unrealized holding gains on securities 964 (1,048) 8,206
Ending balance ¥ 11,757 ¥   10,793 $ 100,085

Foreign currency translation adjustments:
Beginning balance ¥ (9,425) ¥    (8,793) $     (80,233)
Decrease (increase) in foreign currency translation adjustments 658 (632) 5,602
Ending balance ¥ (8,767) ¥    (9,425) $     (74,631)

Treasury stocks:
Beginning balance ¥ (73,226) ¥  (49,165) $ (623,359)
Increase

Transfer of SEGA CORPORATION stock owned by 
Sammy Corporation to treasury stock – (45,521) –

Acquisition of treasury stock by wholly owned subsidiary before share transfer – (257) –
Acquisition of treasury stock (378) (488) (3,218)

Total (378) (46,266) (3,218)
Decrease

Sale of treasury stock by wholly owned subsidiary before share transfer – 11,809 –
Decrease in treasury stock by wholly owned subsidiary before share transfer – 10,356 –
Sale of treasury stock 55 40 468

Total 55 22,205 468
Ending balance ¥ (73,549) ¥  (73,226) $  (626,109)

See accompanying notes.

Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ Equity
SEGA SAMMY HOLDINGS INC. AND CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES

Years ended March 31, 2006 and 2005
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
SEGA SAMMY HOLDINGS INC. AND CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES

Years ended March 31, 2006 and 2005

Thousands of
Millions of yen U.S. dollars

2006 2005 2006

Cash flows from operating activities:
Income before income taxes and minority interests ¥111,924 ¥  89,482 $ 952,787 
Adjustments to reconcile income before income taxes and

minority interests to net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 21,855 17,674 186,048
Interest and dividend income (1,101) (760) (9,373)
Amortization of goodwill 1,782 720 15,170
Interest expenses 634 803 5,397
Loss on sale and disposal of property, plant and equipment–net 846 1,355 7,202
Gain on change in equity of subsidiaries–net (779) (2,252) (6,631)
Impairment losses 7,195 325 61,250
Loss on sale and revaluation of investment securities 470 1,413 4,001
Gain on investments in partnership–net (889) (1,066) (7,568)
Loss on business reorganization 318 2,945 2,707
Loss on redemption of bonds – 10,606 –
Equity in losses (earnings) of affiliates 230 (25) 1,958
(Decrease) Increase in allowance for doubtful accounts (1,016) 596 (8,649)
Increase in accrued employees’ bonuses 333 30 2,835
Increase in retirement benefits for employees 1,128 367 9,602
Increase in retirement benefits for directors and corporate auditors 9 64 77
Others–net (1,299) (2,025) (11,058)

Net changes in assets and liabilities:
(Increase) Decrease in notes and accounts receivable (14,806) 34,138 (126,041)
Decrease (Increase) in inventories 1,690 (3,948) 14,387
Increase (Decrease) in notes and accounts payable–trade 1,237 (12,091) 10,530
Amount of transfer of equipment by amusement center operations business (11,817) (4,982) (100,596)
Decrease in other assets 3,042 174 25,896
Increase (Decrease) in other liabilities 2,366 (3,973) 20,141

Sub-total 123,352 129,570 1,050,072
Receipts of interest and dividend income 1,315 718 11,194
Payment of interest expenses (672) (735) (5,721)
Payment of income taxes (45,767) (51,791) (389,606)
Refund of deposit for lawsuit 5,000 – 42,565

Net cash provided by operating activities 83,228 77,762 708,504
Cash flows from investing activities:

Payment for purchase of property, plant and equipment (26,332) (24,416) (224,159)
Proceeds from sales of property, plant and equipment 345 1,046 2,937
Payment for purchase of securities (3,498) – (29,778)
Payment for purchase of investment securities (2,242) (2,897) (19,086)
Proceeds from sales of investment securities 1,253 180 10,667
Payment for investment in partnerships (24,711) (2,061) (210,360)
Proceeds from distribution of investment in partnerships 8,818 697 75,066
Proceeds from (Payment for) acquisition of consolidated subsidiaries–net 6,001 (2,678) 51,085
(Proceeds from) Payment for sales of consolidated subsidiaries–net (240) 160 (2,043)
Payment for acquisition of affiliated companies (6,803) (2,235) (57,913)
Decrease (Increase) in loan receivables–net 1,137 (1,790) 9,679
Payment for acquisition of operations (2,850) – (24,262)
Decrease (Increase) in time deposits–net 367 (3,500) 3,124
Increase in other investments–net (5,951) (2,124) (50,659)

Net cash used in investing activities (54,706) (39,618) (465,702)
Cash flows from financing activities:

Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt 3,106 1,708 26,441
Repayment of long-term debt (9,778) (7,781) (83,238)
Decrease in short-term bank loans (557) (2,540) (4,742)
Payment for redemption of bonds (3,239) (21,265) (27,573)
Cash dividends paid by wholly owned subsidiary before the stock transfer – (7,433) –
Cash dividends paid (13,776) – (117,272)
Payment for purchase of treasury stock (378) (445) (3,218)
Proceeds from exercise of stock acquisition rights

of wholly owned subsidiary before the stock transfer – 7,262 –
Others–net 3,469 4,791 29,530

Net cash used in financing activities (21,153) (25,703) (180,072)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents 686 54 5,841
Net change in cash and cash equivalents 8,055 12,495 68,571
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 151,253 138,758 1,287,588
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents due to consolidation scope change 463 – 3,941
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents due to merger 323 – 2,750
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year ¥160,094 ¥151,253 $1,362,850

See accompanying notes.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
SEGA SAMMY HOLDINGS INC. AND CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES

Years ended March 31, 2006 and 2005

NOTE 1
Basis of Presenting Consolidated Financial Statements

The accompanying consolidated financial statements of SEGA SAMMY

HOLDINGS INC. (the “Company”) and its consolidated subsidiaries

have been prepared in accordance with the provisions set forth in the

Japanese Securities and Exchange Law and its related accounting

regulations, and in conformity with accounting principles generally

accepted in Japan (“Japanese GAAP”), which are different in certain

respects as to application and disclosure requirements of International

Financial Reporting Standards.

The accounts of overseas subsidiaries are based on their accounting

records maintained in conformity with generally accepted accounting

principles prevailing in the respective countries of domicile. The

accompanying consolidated financial statements have been restructured

and translated into English (with some expanded descriptions and the

inclusion of consolidated statements of shareholders’ equity) from the

consolidated financial statements of the Company prepared in

accordance with Japanese GAAP and filed with the appropriate Local

Finance Bureau of the Ministry of Finance as required by the Securities

and Exchange Law. Some supplementary information included in the

statutory Japanese language consolidated financial statements, but not

required for fair presentation, is not presented in the accompanying

consolidated financial statements.

In preparing the accompanying consolidated financial statements,

certain reclassifications have been made in order to present them in a

form which is more familiar to readers outside Japan. Certain

reclassifications have been made to the 2005 consolidated financial

statements to conform to the classifications used in 2006.

These changes had no impact on previously reported results of opera-

tions or shareholder’s equity.

The translation of the Japanese yen amounts into U.S. dollars is

included solely for the convenience of readers outside Japan, using the

prevailing exchange rate at March 31, 2006, which was ¥117.47 to U.S.$1.

The convenience translations should not be construed as representa-

tions that the Japanese yen amounts have been, could have been, or

could in the future be, converted into U.S. dollars at this or any other

rate of exchange.

NOTE 2
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(a) Business combination

On October 1, 2004, the Pooling of Interest Method was applied for the

business combination of SEGA CORPORATION and Sammy

Corporation, both of whose shares were transferred to establish the

Company. The consolidated statements of income, shareholder’s equity

and cash flows were prepared as if the combination was completed

effective April 1, 2004.

(b) Principles of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the

Company and its significant subsidiaries, which are controlled through

substantial ownership of majority voting rights or existence of certain

conditions. All significant inter-company balances, transactions and

unrealized profits have been eliminated. The number of the consolidated

subsidiaries was 72 and 61 in 2006 and 2005, respectively.

(c) Equity method

Investments in affiliated companies over which the Company has the

ability to exercise significant influence over operation and financial

policies of investors are accounted for using the equity method. The

number of companies accounted for under the equity method was 8 and

6 in 2006 and 2005, respectively.

(d) Consolidated statements of cash flows

In preparing the consolidated statements of cash flows, cash on hand,

readily available deposits and short-term highly liquid investments with

maturities of not exceeding three months at the time of purchase are

considered to be cash and cash equivalents.

(e) Allowance for doubtful accounts

The allowance for doubtful accounts is provided at an amount sufficient

to cover probable losses on collection by estimating individually

uncollectible amounts and applying a percentage based on collection

experience to the remaining accounts.

(f) Investment securities 

The Company and its consolidated subsidiaries examine the intent of

holding each security and classify those securities as (a) securities held for

trading purposes (hereafter, “trading securities”), (b) debt securities

intended to be held to maturity (hereafter, “held-to-maturity debt

securities”), (c) equity securities issued by subsidiaries and affiliated

companies and (d) all other securities that are not classified in any of the

above categories (hereafter, “available-for-sale securities”).

Held-to-maturity debt securities are stated at amortized cost. Available-

for-sale securities with available fair market values are stated at fair market

value. Unrealized gains and unrealized losses on these securities are

reported, net of applicable income taxes, as a separate component of

shareholders’ equity. Realized gains and losses on sale of such securities

are computed using moving-average cost. Available-for-sale securities

with no available fair market values are stated at moving-average cost.



56 SEGA SAMMY HOLDINGS

Equity securities issued by subsidiaries and affiliated companies, which

are not consolidated or accounted for using the equity method, are stated

at moving-average cost.

The Company and its consolidated subsidiaries did not have trading

securities in the years ended March 2006 and 2005 and held-to-maturity

debt securities in the year ended March 31, 2005.

(g) Inventories

Inventories are stated at cost determined by the weighted-average method.

(h) Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost. Depreciation is

computed primarily using the declining-balance method at rates based

on estimated useful lives of respective assets. In addition, buildings

acquired after March 31, 1998 are depreciated using the straight-line

method.

(i) Amortization of intangible assets

Intangible assets are amortized using the straight-line method, and

software used by the Company and its consolidated subsidiaries is

amortized using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives

of five years.

(j) Goodwill

The Company and its subsidiaries classified the cost in excess of fair

market value of net assets of companies acquired in purchase

transactions as goodwill. The Company and its subsidiaries compute

amortization of goodwill by the straight-line method at rates based on

the estimated useful lives, except for goodwill that is amortized over five

years because its useful life is uncertain.

The Company regularly reviews the carrying amount of goodwill for

re-evaluation whenever events or circumstances indicate that the

carrying amounts may not be recoverable. Insignificant amounts of such

intangible assets are charged to income when incurred.

Goodwill that is on the balance sheet of certain foreign subsidiaries has

not been amortized. Impairment loss is recognized if necessary according

to generally accepted accounting standards of the United States of

America.

(k) Impairment of fixed assets

Effective April 1, 2005, the Company and its consolidated domestic

subsidiaries adopted the new accounting standard for impairment of

fixed assets (“Opinion Concerning Establishment of Accounting

Standard for Impairment of Fixed Assets” issued by the Business

Accounting Deliberation Council on August 9, 2002) and the

implementation guidance for the accounting standard for impairment of

fixed assets (the Financial Accounting Standard Implementation

Guidance No. 6 issued by the Accounting Standards Board of Japan on

October 31, 2003). As a result of this change, income before income taxes

and minority interests for the year ended March 31, 2006 decreased by

¥7,195 million ($61,250 thousand) compared with what would have been

recorded under the previous accounting policy.

(l) Accounting for certain lease transactions

Finance leases that do not transfer the ownership to lessees are not

capitalized and are accounted for in the same manner as operating leases.

(m) Allowance for employees’ bonuses

The Company and its consolidated subsidiaries provide allowance for

employees’ bonuses based on estimated amounts to be paid in the

subsequent period.

Bonuses to directors and corporate auditors, which were subject to

approval at the shareholders’ meeting, are accounted for as an

appropriation of retained earnings.

(n) Retirement benefits for employees

The Company and its consolidated subsidiaries provide two types of

post-employment benefit plans, unfunded lump-sum payment plans and

funded pension plans, under which all eligible employees are entitled to

benefits based on the level of wages and salaries at the time of retirement

or termination, length of service and certain other factors. 

The Company and its consolidated subsidiaries provide allowance 

for employees’ severance and retirement benefits based on the estimated

amounts of projected benefit obligation and the fair value of the plan

assets.

The estimated amount of all retirement benefits to be paid at the

future retirement date is allocated equally to each service year using the

estimated number of total service years. Actuarial gains and losses are

charged to income in the succeeding period except for SEGA

CORPORATION and three other subsidiaries that recognize actual gains

and losses as expenses using the straight-line method over ten years

commencing from the succeeding period.

Prior service cost is charged to income when incurred except for SEGA

CORPORATION and three other subsidiaries that recognize prior

service costs as expenses using the straight-line method over ten years.

(o) Retirement benefits for directors and corporate auditors

Retirement benefits for the directors and corporate auditors are provided

based on an accrual basis in accordance with the internal rules of the

Company and its subsidiaries.

(p) Income taxes

Income taxes comprise corporation, enterprise and inhabitants taxes.

The Company and its consolidated subsidiaries recognize deferred

taxes for tax effects of temporary differences between the carrying

amounts of assets and liabilities for tax and financial reporting purposes. 

(q) Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are stated at fair value and changes in

their fair values are recognized as gains or losses unless derivative

financial instruments are used for hedging purposes.

For derivative financial instruments that are used as hedges and meet

certain hedging criteria, recognition of gains or losses resulting from

changes in fair value of derivative financial instruments is deferred until

the related losses or gains on the hedged items are recognized in earnings.
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Also, if interest rate swap contracts are used for hedging purposes and

meet certain hedging criteria, the net amount to be paid or received under

the interest rate swap contract is added to or deducted from the interest on

the assets or liabilities for which the swap contract was executed.

(r) Per share data

Net income per share is computed by dividing income available to

common stockholders by the weighted-average number of common

stock outstanding during the period. Income available to common

stockholders is computed by deducting bonuses to directors and

corporate auditors from net income. Diluted net income per share is

similar to net income per share except that the weight-average number of

common stock outstanding is increased by the number of additional

common stock that would have been outstanding if the potential

common stocks had been issued.

Cash dividends per share in the consolidated statements of income

represent actual amounts applicable to the year.

(s) Foreign currency transactions

Receivables and payables denominated in foreign currencies are

translated into Japanese yen at the year-end exchange rate.

NOTE 3
Inventories

Inventories as of March 31, 2006 and 2005 consisted of the following:

Thousands of
Millions of yen U.S. dollars

2006 2005 2006
Merchandise ¥  3,448 ¥  3,761 $  29,352
Finished products 8,548 6,210 72,768
Raw materials 16,517 17,793 140,606
Work in process 2,082 3,542 17,724
Supplies 1,605 696 13,663

¥32,200 ¥32,002 $274,113

NOTE 4
Short-Term Bank Loans, Current Portion of Long-Term Debt and

Long-Term Debt

Short-term bank loans outstanding are generally represented, with

interest at rates ranging from 0.80% to 2.76% and 1.38% to 4.61% as of

March 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

Long-term debt consisted of the following:
Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars

2006 2005 2006
Bonds:

0.28% debenture due in 2006 ¥           – ¥       200 $             –
0.41% debenture due in 2007 75 – 638
0.40% debenture due in 2007 – 70 –
0.44%–1.99% debenture due
in 2008 15,335 – 130,544

0.41% debenture due in 2008 – 18,943 –
1.30% debenture due in 2009 71 – 604
0.20%–0.61% debenture due
in 2009 – 5,176 –

0.41%–1.47% debenture due
in 2010 10,140 – 86,321

0.41% debenture due in 2010 – 10,000 –

Long-term loans, principally due
from banks with interest at
0.90% to 2.98% and 1.35% to
8.76% as of March 31,
2006 and 2005:

Secured 272 779 2,315
Unsecured 11,114 17,091 94,612

37,007 52,259 315,034
Less: current portion (7,789) (10,030) (66,307)

¥29,218 ¥ 42,229 $248,727

On October 29, 2004, the Company issued ¥39,900 million of zero

coupon convertible bonds (convertible bond-type bonds with stock

acquisition rights) due in 2009.The stock acquisition rights are

exercisable on or after November 1, 2004 up to, and including, February

17, 2009 at a conversion price of ¥3,828 per share.

At March 31, 2006 and 2005, balance of convertible bonds with stock

acquisition rights were ¥1 million ($9 thousand) and ¥5,323 million,

respectively.

The aggregate annual maturities of long-term debt at March 31, 2006

were as follows:

Thousands of
Millions of yen U.S. dollars

Years ending March 31,

2007 ¥12,555 $106,878
2008 6,054 51,537
2009 173 1,473
2010 10,204 86,865
2011 and thereafter 232 1,974
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A summary of assets pledged as collateral for short-term loans, long-

term debt, accounts payable–trade and other current liabilities at March

31, 2006 and 2005 were as follows:

Thousands of
Millions of yen U.S. dollars

2006 2005 2006
Time deposits ¥      25 ¥      20 $      213
Notes receivable 468 1,479 3,984
Land 535 964 4,554
Buildings 349 331 2,971

¥1,377 ¥2,794 $11,722

NOTE 5
Stock Option Plan

(a) At the annual meeting of shareholders held on June 24, 2005, the

Company’s employees and subsidiaries’ employees were granted

options in the amount of 2,600,000 shares to purchase a maximum of

200 common shares of the Company, per individual. At March 31,

2006, a total of 2,486,800 shares are outstanding. The option exercise

price is ¥3,470 per share. The option is exercisable between July 31,

2007 and July 30, 2009.

(b) At the annual meeting of shareholders held on June 20, 2006, the

Company’s directors were granted options in the amount of not

more than 43,000 shares in total. The option exercise price is decided

by a resolution of the Board of Directors. The option is exercisable

between July 31, 2008 and July 30, 2010.

(c) At the annual meeting of shareholders held on June 20, 2006, the

Company’s employees and subsidiaries’ directors and employees were

granted options in the amount of not more than 2,770,000 shares in

total. The subscription price per share of the right will be determined

at 1.05 of average market quotation of the shares of the Company 

at the month that proceeds the month in which the subscription right

is granted. The option is exercisable for a period of two years starting

two years after the granted.

NOTE 6
Retirement Benefits for Employees

The liabilities and expenses for severance and retirement benefits are

determined based on the amounts obtained by actuarial calculations.

The liabilities for severance and retirement benefits included in the

liability section of the consolidated balance sheets as of March 31, 2006

and 2005 consisted of the following:

Thousands of
Millions of yen U.S. dollars

2006 2005 2006
Projected benefit obligation ¥ 19,980 ¥16,977 $170,086
Unrecognized actuarial differences (2,490) (4,127) (21,198)
Unrecognized prior service cost 454 545 3,865
Prepaid pension cost – 28 –
Less fair value of pension assets (10,453) (7,386) (88,984)
Liability for severance and
retirement benefits ¥    7,491 ¥ 6,037 $  63,769

Included in the consolidated statements of income for the years ended

March 31, 2006 and 2005, severance and retirement benefit expenses

comprised the following:

Thousands of
Millions of yen U.S. dollars

2006 2005 2006
Service costs–benefits earned
during the year ¥2,095 ¥1,343 $17,834

Interest cost on projected benefit
obligation 340 271 2,894

Expected return on plan assets (177) (4) (1,507)
Amortization of actuarial difference 554 380 4,716
Amortization of prior service cost (91) (91) (775)
Additional interim benefit – 763 –
Other 175 54 1,491
Severance and retirement benefit
expenses ¥2,896 ¥2,716 $24,653

2006 2005
Discount rate 2.0~2.5% 2.0~2.5%
Rate of expected return on plan assets 1.0~2.5% 0.0~1.0%

NOTE 7
Contingent Liabilities

The subsidiaries of the Company had contingent liabilities as of March

31, 2006 and 2005 as follows:

Thousands of
Millions of yen U.S. dollars

2006 2005 2006
Electronic Approval System Council ¥  98 ¥130 $   834
Dimps K.K. 400 – 3,405
SEGA GAME WORKS, LLC. – 192 –

Also, the Company and its subsidiaries had ¥11 million of endorsed

notes and ¥1,674 million of notes securitized as of March 31, 2005.

NOTE 8
Shareholders’ Equity

Under the Japanese laws and regulations, the entire amount of payment

for new shares is required to be designated as common stock, although,

generally, a company may, by a resolution of the Board of Directors,

designate an amount not exceeding one-half of the price of the new

shares as additional paid-in capital, which is included in capital surplus.

Japanese Company Law (“the Law”) became effective on May 1, 2006,

and, at the same time, the Japanese Commercial Code was repealed (“the

Code”).

Under the Code, companies were required to set aside an amount equal

to at least 10% of cash dividends and other cash appropriations as legal

earnings reserve until the total of legal earnings reserve and additional

paid-in capital equaled 25% of common stock. Under the Law, in cases

when dividends are paid, an amount equal to 10% of the dividends or the

excess of 25% of common stock over the total of additional paid-in capital

and legal earnings reserve, whichever is the smaller, must be set aside as

additional paid-in capital or legal earnings reserve. Under the Code,

additional paid-in capital and legal earnings reserve were available for



59ANNUAL REPORT 2006

distribution by the resolution of the shareholder’s meeting as long as the

total amount of legal earnings reserve and additional paid-in capital

remained equal to or exceeded 25% of common stock. Under the Law,

even when the total amount of additional paid-in capital and legal

earnings reserve is less than 25% of common stock, additional paid-in

capital and legal earnings reserve may be available for dividends if there are

sufficient distributable surplus. Under the Code, legal earnings reserve

and additional paid-in capital could be used to eliminate or reduce a

deficit by a resolution of the shareholders’ meeting or may be capitalized

by a resolution of the Board of Directors. Under the Law, both of those

appropriations require a resolution of the shareholders’ meeting. Legal

earnings reserve is included in retained earnings in the accompanying

consolidated balance sheets.

The maximum amount that the Company can distribute as dividends

is calculated based on the non-consolidated financial statements of the

Company in accordance with the Japanese laws and regulations.

At the annual shareholders’ meeting held on June 20, 2006, the

shareholders resolved cash dividends and directors’ and corporate

auditors’ bonuses amounting to ¥7,559 million ($64,348 thousand) and

¥200 million ($1,703 thousand), respectively. Such appropriations have

not been accrued in the consolidated financial statements as of March 31,

2006. Such appropriations will be recognized in the period when they are

resolved.

NOTE 9
Revaluation Reserve for Land

SEGA CORPORATION, which is a consolidated subsidiary, revalued

land for its business in accordance with the Land Revaluation Law. The

Company recorded the entire difference between the carrying amount

and revalued amount as revaluation reserve for land as a separate

component of shareholder’s equity.

Revaluation of land was performed by making a reasonable adjustment

on the land based on the market value estimated in accordance with

relevant provisions of the Land Revaluation Law.

Date of Revaluation: March 31, 2002

The market value of the land as of March 31, 2006 and 2005 was less

than the book value by ¥381 million ($3,243 thousand) and ¥655 million,

respectively.

NOTE 10
Income Taxes

The Company and its subsidiaries are subject to a number of taxes based

on income, which, in the aggregate, indicate statutory rates in Japan of

approximately 40.7% for the years ended March 31, 2006 and 2005.

The following table summarizes the significant differences between the

statutory tax rate and the Company’s effective tax rate for financial

statement purposes for the year ended March 31, 2005:
2005

Statutory tax rate 40.7%
Valuation allowance 3.2
Gain on change in equity of a subsidiary (1.6)
Others 0.3
Effective tax rate 42.6%

The difference between the statutory tax rate and the effective tax rate

for financial statement purposes for the year ended March 31, 2006 is not

shown because it is not significant.

The Company’s and its subsidiaries’ significant components of

deferred tax assets and liabilities as of March 31, 2006 and 2005 were as

follows:

Thousands of
Millions of yen U.S. dollars

2006 2005 2006
Deferred tax assets:

Allowance for doubtful accounts ¥ 3,262 ¥    5,593 $   27,769
Loss on devaluation of inventories 2,556 3,176 21,759
Expensed tangible assets not
deductible for tax purposes 643 1,067 5,474
Enterprise taxes accrued 2,366 – 20,141
Retirement benefits for employees 3,042 1,357 25,896
Depreciation expense 7,895 7,827 67,209
Loss on devaluation of investments 2,849 37,051 24,253
Impairment losses 2,979 132 25,360
Tax loss carry forward 17,503 35,550 149,000
Others 12,592 14,625 107,192

Sub total 55,687 106,378 474,053
Valuation allowance (43,272) (97,795) (368,366)

Total 12,415 8,583 105,687
Deferred tax liabilities:

Net unrealized holding gains
on securities 7,651 7,241 65,132
Others 2,171 218 18,482

Total 9,822 7,459 83,614
Net deferred tax assets ¥   2,593 ¥    1,124 $ 22,073
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NOTE 11
Market Value Information of Securities

Balance sheet amounts, fair values and valuation gains or losses of held-

to-maturity debt securities with available fair values as of March 31, 2006

were as follows:

Millions of yen
Balance sheet Valuation

amount Fair value gains (losses)

Securities whose market value
exceeds the balance sheet amount:

Bonds ¥499 ¥499 ¥ 0
Securities whose market value

is equal to or lower than the
balance sheet amount:

Bonds 500 500 (0)

Thousands of U.S. dollars
Balance sheet Valuation

amount Fair value gains (losses)

Securities whose market value
exceeds the balance sheet amount:

Bonds $4,248 $4,248 $0
Securities whose market value

is equal to or lower than the
balance sheet amount:

Bonds 4,256 4,256 (0)

Acquisition costs, balance sheet amounts and valuation gains or losses

of available-for-sale securities with available fair values as of March 31,

2006 were as follows:

Millions of yen
Acquisition Balance sheet Valuation

cost amount gains (losses)

Securities whose market value
exceeds the balance sheet amount:

Stocks  ¥1,581 ¥15,166 ¥13,585
Bonds and debentures 2,001 2,034 33

Securities whose market value
is equal to or lower than the
balance sheet amount:

Stocks 1,293 661 (632)
Bonds and debentures 2,922 2,792 (130)

Thousands of U.S. dollars
Acquisition Balance sheet Valuation

cost amount gains (losses)

Securities whose market value
exceeds the balance sheet amount:

Stocks  $13,458 $129,105 $115,647
Bonds and debentures 17,034 17,315 281

Securities whose market value
is equal to or lower than the
balance sheet amount:

Stocks 11,007 5,627 (5,380)
Bonds and debentures 24,875 23,768 (1,107)

Available-for-sale securities sold in the year ended March 31, 2006

amounted to ¥1,253 million ($10,667 thousand) and the related gains

and losses amounted to ¥400 million ($3,405 thousand) and ¥16 million

($136 thousand).

Acquisition costs, balance sheet amounts and valuation gains or losses

of available-for-sale securities with available fair values as of March 31,

2005 were as follows:

Millions of yen
Acquisition Balance sheet Valuation

cost amount gains (losses)

Securities whose market value
exceeds the balance sheet amount:

Stocks  ¥1,386 ¥17,454 ¥16,068
Bonds and debentures 2,306 2,391 85

Securities whose market value
is equal to or lower than the
balance sheet amount:

Stocks 942 608 (334)

Available-for-sale securities sold in the year ended March 31, 2005

amounted to ¥128 million and the related gains amounted to ¥49

million.

NOTE 12
Loan Receivable in Securities

Loan receivable in securities of ¥1,397 million ($11,892 thousand) and

¥943 million were included in investments in securities as of March 31,

2006 and 2005, respectively.

NOTE 13
Research and Development Expenses

Expenses relating to research and development activities have been

charged to income as incurred and amounted to ¥36,338 million

($309,339 thousand) and ¥41,590 million for the years ended March 31,

2006 and 2005, respectively.

NOTE 14
Gain on Sale of Operations

Gain on sale of operations is derived from sale of operations in RTzen

Inc., which was a former consolidated subsidiary for the year ended

March 31, 2006, and from sale of investment in Visual Concepts Entertain-

ment, Inc. in relation to SEGA CORPORATION’s software restructuring

strategy in the United States for the year ended March 31, 2005.

NOTE 15
Loss on Business Reorganization

Loss on business reorganization was recognized in the business reorgan-

ization between Sammy Corporation and SEGA CORPORATION for the

years ended March 31, 2006 and 2005.
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For each business segment, the Company classifies assets or asset

groups based on whether their cash flows can be estimated inde-

pendently. The book values of assets or asset groups whose market values

have declined significantly or that are projected to consistently generate

negative cash flows are reduced to their recoverable value. The amount of

this reduction is deemed an impairment loss and is recorded under other

expenses in the financial statements. The recoverable values of amuse-

ment facilities (Tokushima-shi, Tokushima and Takatsuki-shi, Osaka)

and assets for lease are assessed using their values in use, which are the

present value of projected cash flows generated by these assets using the

discount rate between 2.2% and 6.0%. The recoverable values of

amusement facilities (Chuo-ku, Osaka) and idle assets are calculated

using the fair value less cost to sell based on the real estate appraisal value

or the assessed value of fixed assets for property tax purposes.

The loss on devaluation of fixed assets for the year ended March 31,

2005 resulted from the decision at the board meeting to sell certain land

and a building in Osaka.

NOTE 16
Impairment Losses

Impairment losses for the year ended March 31, 2006 consisted of the following:

Impairment Loss

Thousands of
Use Location Type Millions of yen U.S. dollars

Amusement centers Chuo-ku, Osaka Land ¥4,576 $38,955
Buildings and structures 1,880 16,004
Other tangible fixed assets 208 1,771
Other intangible fixed assets 43 366

Tokushima-shi, Tokushima Buildings and structures 100 851
Takatsuki-shi, Osaka Buildings and structures 2 17

Assets for lease Sakaiminato-shi, Tottori; Bunkyo-ku, Tokyo; Land 119 1,013
and three other locations Buildings and structures 37 315

Idle assets Karuizawa-cho, Nagano; and five other locations Land 42 358
Kawagoe-shi, Saitama Other tangible fixed assets 188 1,600

Total ¥7,195 $61,250

NOTE 17
Information for Certain Leases

A summary of assumed amounts of acquisition cost, accumulated

depreciation and net book value for the years ended March 31, 2006 and

2005 with respect to the finance leases accounted for in the same manner

as operating leases was as follows:

March 31, 2006

Millions of yen
Acquisition Accumulated Net book

cost depreciation value

Structures ¥   309 ¥   102 ¥   207
Amusement machines 1,797 936 861
Tools, furniture and fixtures 3,425 1,602 1,823
Machinery and equipment 32 5 27
Software 631 240 391
Others 46 9 37

Total ¥6,240 ¥2,894 ¥3,346

March 31, 2006

Thousands of U.S. dollars
Acquisition Accumulated Net book

cost depreciation value

Structures $  2,630 $     868 $  1,762
Amusement machines 15,298 7,968 7,330
Tools, furniture and fixtures 29,156 13,638 15,518
Machinery and equipment 272 43 229
Software 5,372 2,043 3,329
Others 392 76 316

Total$ 53,120 $24,636 $28,484

March 31, 2005

Millions of yen
Acquisition Accumulated Net book

cost depreciation value

Tools, furniture and fixtures ¥2,626 ¥1,121 ¥1,505
Machinery and equipment 275 166 109
Software 200 123 77
Others 56 6 50

Total¥3,157 ¥1,416 ¥1,741

Future lease payments under the finance leases that were accounted for

in the same manner as operating leases as of March 31, 2006 and 2005

were as follows:

Thousands of
Millions of yen U.S. dollars

2006 2005 2006
Due within one year ¥1,450 ¥   709 $12,344
Due after one year 2,002 1,052 17,042

Total¥3,452 ¥1,761 $29,386

A summary of assumed amounts of lease payments, depreciation and

interest for the years ended March 31, 2006 and 2005 with respect to the

finance leases accounted for in the same manner as operating leases was

as follows:

Thousands of
Millions of yen U.S. dollars

2006 2005 2006
Lease payments ¥1,478 ¥843 $12,582
Depreciation 1,460 812 12,429
Interest expense 85 32 724
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NOTE 18
Derivative Transactions

To avoid adverse effects of fluctuation of the market risk associated with

financial activities and fluctuation in exchange rates, the Company and

its consolidated subsidiaries use interest rate swap contracts and foreign

exchange contracts. The Company and its subsidiaries use derivative

financial instruments only for hedging purposes and do not use them for

speculative trading purposes.

The interest rate swap contracts and foreign exchange contracts are

executed with creditworthy financial institutions, and the Company and

its subsidiaries believe the risk of default by counterparties is currently low.

Based on the regulation approved by the board meeting, the account-

ing and finance department manages derivative transactions after internal

authorizations.

Market values of derivative transactions as of March 31, 2006 were as

follows (except the derivative transaction hedged):

Millions of yen Thousands of U.S. dollars
Contract Fair Unrealized Contract Fair Unrealized

value value (losses) value value (losses)

Forward exchange
contracts:

Buying U.S. dollars ¥304 ¥297 ¥(7) $2,588 $2,528 $(60)

Market values of derivative transactions as of March 31, 2005 were as

follows (except the derivative transaction hedged):

Millions of yen
Contract Fair Unrealized

value value (losses)

Forward exchange
contracts:

Buying U.S. dollars ¥584 ¥514 ¥(70)

NOTE 19
Segment Information

A. Industry segment information

Industry segment information for the year ended March 31, 2006 is as follows:

Millions of yen

Amusement
Pachislot Amusement center Consumer Corporate and
Pachinko machine sales operations business Others Total elimination Consolidated

Net sales:
(1) Outside customers ¥265,632 ¥71,513 ¥106,246 ¥90,353 ¥19,497 ¥553,241 ¥             – ¥553,241
(2) Inter-segment 1,182 5,757 12 376 1,334 8,661 (8,661) –

Total 266,814 77,270 106,258 90,729 20,831 561,902 (8,661) 553,241
Cost of sales and operating

expense 166,966 65,093 97,014 88,752 22,544 440,369 (6,272) 434,097
Operating income ¥ 99,848 ¥12,177 ¥     9,244 ¥ 1,977 ¥ (1,713) ¥121,533 ¥ (2,389) ¥119,144
Total assets ¥121,843 ¥41,777 ¥ 91,099 ¥89,599 ¥13,425 ¥357,743 ¥165,171 ¥522,914
Depreciation and amortization ¥     2,482 ¥ 1,505 ¥ 17,148 ¥ 2,411 ¥  717 ¥ 24,263 ¥ (2,408) ¥ 21,855
Impairment losses ¥  329 ¥    – ¥     6,808 ¥ – ¥        55 ¥ 7,192 ¥             3 ¥ 7,195
Capital expenditures ¥     6,944 ¥ 1,467 ¥ 24,577 ¥ 3,502 ¥ 929 ¥ 37,419 ¥        231 ¥ 37,650
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Thousands of U.S. dollars

Amusement
Pachislot Amusement center Consumer Corporate and
Pachinko machine sales operations business Others Total elimination Consolidated

Net sales:
(1) Outside customers $2,261,275 $608,777 $904,452 $769,158 $165,975 $4,709,637 $ – $4,709,637
(2) Inter-segment 10,062 49,008 102 3,201 11,356 73,729 (73,729) –

Total 2,271,337 657,785 904,554 772,359 177,331 4,783,366 (73,729) 4,709,637
Cost of sales and operating

expense 1,421,350 554,124 825,862 755,529 191,914 3,748,779 (53,392) 3,695,387
Operating income $ 849,987 $103,661 $ 78,692 $ 16,830 $ (14,583) $1,034,587 $ (20,337) $1,014,250
Total assets $1,037,227 $355,640 $775,509 $762,739 $114,283 $3,045,398 $1,406,070 $4,451,468
Depreciation and amortization $ 21,129 $ 12,812 $145,978 $ 20,524 $ 6,104 $ 206,547 $ (20,499) $ 186,048
Impairment losses $        2,801 $             – $ 57,955 $             – $        468 $ 61,224 $              26 $ 61,250
Capital expenditures $ 59,113 $ 12,488 $209,219 $ 29,813 $ 7,908 $ 318,541 $  1,966 $   320,507

Notes: 1. The Company has five operating segments based on its management control structure and the nature of products and markets.

2. Main products and line of business by segment:

(1) Pachislot Pachinko Development, manufacture and sale of pachinko and pachislot machines and design parlors

(2) Amusement machine sales Development, manufacture and sale of game machines used in amusement arcades

(3) Amusement center operations Development, operation, rent and maintenance of amusement centers

(4) Consumer business Development and sales of home video game software; development, manufacture, and sales of toys; planning and production of entertainment contents for cellular phones, etc;

planning, production and sale of animated movies

(5) Others Planning, design, management and construction of commercial establishments, etc.

3. General corporate expenses of ¥4,915 million ($41,840 thousand), which mainly consist of expenses incurred by the Company’s administrative department, are included in “Corporate and elimination.”

4. Corporate assets of ¥170,929 million ($1,455,086 thousand), which mainly consist of cash and cash equivalents of SEGA CORPORATION and Sammy Corporation and the Company’s assets, are included in 

“Corporate and elimination.”

Industry segment information for the year ended March 31, 2005 was as follows:

Millions of yen

Amusement
Pachislot Amusement center Consumer Corporate and
Pachinko machine sales operations business Others Total elimination Consolidated

Net sales:
(1) Outside customers ¥280,109 ¥63,305 ¥83,194 ¥65,341 ¥23,719 ¥515,668 ¥             – ¥515,668
(2) Inter-segment 33 16,535 126 115 747 17,556 (17,556) –

Total 280,142 79,840 83,320 65,456 24,466 533,224 (17,556) 515,668
Cost of sales and operating
expense 176,211 72,416 77,848 74,266 25,007 425,748 (15,170) 410,578

Operating income ¥103,931 ¥ 7,424 ¥ 5,472 ¥ (8,810) ¥ (541) ¥107,476 ¥ (2,386) ¥105,090
Total assets ¥114,064 ¥35,191 ¥74,989 ¥54,493 ¥19,627 ¥298,364 ¥140,627 ¥438,991
Depreciation and amortization ¥  2,389 ¥ 857 ¥11,937 ¥ 2,121 ¥ 346 ¥ 17,650 ¥    24 ¥ 17,674
Capital expenditures ¥ 2,843 ¥ 1,227 ¥24,886 ¥ 2,223 ¥ 638 ¥ 31,817 ¥       651 ¥ 32,468

Notes: 1. The Company has five operating segments based on its management control structure and the nature of products and markets.

2. Main products and line of business by segment:

(1) Pachislot Pachinko Development, manufacture and sale of pachinko and pachislot machines and design parlors

(2) Amusement machine sales Development, manufacture and sale of game machines used in amusement arcades

(3) Amusement center operations Development, operation, rent and maintenance of amusement centers

(4) Consumer business Development and sales of home video game software; development, manufacture, and sales of toys; planning and production of entertainment contents for cellular phones, etc.

(5)Others Planning, design, management and construction of commercial establishments, etc.

3. General corporate expenses of ¥2,182 million, which mainly consist of expenses incurred by the Company’s administrative department, are included in “Corporate and elimination.”

4. Corporate assets of ¥144,739 million, which mainly consist of cash and cash equivalents of SEGA CORPORATION and Sammy Corporation and the Company’s assets, are included in ”Corporate and elimination.”

B. Geographical segment information

Geographical segment information was not presented as the sales and

assets of consolidated domestic subsidiaries for the years ended March 31,

2006 and 2005 exceed 90% of consolidated net sales and assets.

C. Overseas sales

Overseas sales were not presented as the overseas sales of the Company

and its consolidated subsidiaries for the years ended March 31, 2006 and

2005 were less than 10% of consolidated net sales.
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NOTE 20
Related-Party Transactions

Material transactions of the Company with related individuals or companies for the year ended March 31, 2006 are as follows:

Millions of yen

Transactions End of period account balance

Name of related individual Position and Description of the
and company principal business Company’s transaction 2006 Account 2006

Hajime Satomi Chairman and CEO Lease of business jet ¥349 – ¥ –
of the Company

FSC Co., Ltd. Nonlife insurance agent Payment of insurance 22 Prepaid 6
and outsourcing fees expense

NOTE 21
Per Share Data

Per share data are as follows:

Yen U.S. dollars

2006 2005 2006
Per share data:

Equity per share ¥1,254.14 ¥2,067.91 $10.68
Net income per share 261.06 410.53 2.22
Net income per share (diluted) 260.35 400.95 2.22

On November 18, 2005, the Company conducted a for stock split. Per

share data would have been as follows if the stock split had been

performed at the beginning of previous period.

Yen

Per share data:
Equity per share ¥1,033.96
Net income per share 205.27
Net income per share (diluted) 200.48

NOTE 22
Subsequent Event

To reinforce the competitiveness of the Company’s consumer business in

the North American and European markets, subsidiary SEGA HOLDINGS

EUROPE LTD. acquired all issued shares of SPORTS INTERACTIVE Ltd.

on April 3, 2006. Likewise, on the same day, SEGA HOLDINGS U.S.A.,

INC., another member of the Sega Sammy Group, acquired all issued

shares of SECRET LEVEL, Inc. As a result, both SPORTS INTERACTIVE

and SECRET LEVEL became subsidiaries of the Company.

Overview of the New Subsidiaries

(a) SPORTS INTERACTIVE Ltd.

1. Trade name: SPORTS INTERACTIVE Ltd.

2. Main business: Development of consumer games

3. Capital: £859.82

4. Transferors of shares:

Oliver Collyer, 37,500 shares; Evertonia Trust, 37,500 shares; and

10,982 shares from 16 other shareholders

5. Total number of shares acquired (price): 

85,982 shares (£28.5 million)

6. Equity after acquisition: 100%

(b) SECRET LEVEL Inc.

1. Trade name: SECRET LEVEL, Inc.

2. Main business: Development of consumer games and game engines

3. Capital: U.S.$1,470

4. Transferors of shares:

Jeremy Gordon, 360,000 shares; Otavio Good, 305,000 shares; and

805,000 shares from 10 other shareholders

5. Total number of shares acquired (price): 

1,470,000 shares (U.S.$15 million)

6. Equity after acquisition: 100% 

Thousands of U.S. dollars

Transactions End of period account balance

Name of related individual Position and Description of the
and company principal business Company’s transaction 2006 Account 2006

Hajime Satomi Chairman and CEO Lease of business jet $2,971 – $ –
of the Company

FSC Co., Ltd. Nonlife insurance agent Payment of insurance 187 Prepaid 51
and outsourcing fees expense

Notes: 1. Hajime Satomi, chairman and CEO of the Company, directly holds 53% shares of FSC Co., Ltd.

2. The Company paid a lease fee to ITC-Aerospace, Inc. which operated the business jet owned by Hajime Satomi, chairman and CEO of the Company.

3. The terms and conditions of the above transactions are on an arm’s- length basis. The above amounts exclude consumption taxes, but consumption taxes are included 

in the end of period account balance.
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Independent Auditors’ Report

To the Shareholders and Board of Directors of

SEGA SAMMY HOLDINGS INC.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of SEGA SAMMY HOLDINGS INC. and consolidated

subsidiaries as of March 31, 2006 and 2005, and the related consolidated statements of income, shareholders’ equity

and cash flows for the years then ended, expressed in Japanese yen. These consolidated financial statements are the

responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to independently express an opinion on these

consolidated financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in Japan. Those standards

require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are

free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and

disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant

estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our

audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the

consolidated financial position of SEGA SAMMY HOLDINGS INC. and subsidiaries as of March 31, 2006 and 2005,

and the consolidated results of their operations and their cash flows for the years then ended, in conformity with

accounting principles generally accepted in Japan.

Without qualifying our opinion, we draw attention to the following. 

As discussed in Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements, effective April 1, 2005, SEGA SAMMY HOLDINGS

INC. and consolidated domestic subsidiaries adopted the new accounting standards for impairment of fixed assets.

The U.S. dollar amounts in the accompanying consolidated financial statements with respect to the year ended

March 31, 2006 are presented solely for convenience. Our audit also included the translation of yen amounts into U.S.

dollar amounts and, in our opinion, such translation has been made on the basis described in Note 1 to the

consolidated financial statements.

Tokyo, Japan

June 20, 2006
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(As of March 31, 2006) 

THE SEGA SAMMY GROUP

SEGA SAMMY HOLDINGS INC. 

Head Office: Shiodome Sumitomo Building, 1-9-2 Higashi Shimbashi, 
Minato-ku, Tokyo 105-0021, Japan

Established: October 1, 2004   

Paid-in Capital: ¥29.9 billion   

Number of Employees: 96 (non-consolidated)   

6,416 (consolidated)

SUBSIDIARIES AND AFFILIATES

Company Name Paid-in Capital Voting Rights Business Lines

Sammy Corporation ¥18,221 million 100.0%  Development, production, and sales of pachislot and pachinko machines

SEGA CORPORATION ¥60,000 million  100.0%  Development, production, and sales of amusement machines; 

operation of amusement centers; development and sales of game software

RODEO Co., Ltd.  ¥100 million 65.0%* Development, production, and sales of pachislot machines

Shuko Electronics Co., Ltd.  ¥179 million 99.9%* Development, production, and sales of peripheral equipment for pachislot 

and pachinko machines

Sammy Design Co., Ltd.  ¥40 million  100.0%* Planning, design, and construction of pachinko halls

SI ELECTRONICS, LTD. ¥244 million 88.1%* Development and sales of system-on-chips for LCD displays

H-I System Corporation ¥10 million 100.0%* Development, production, and sales of peripheral equipment for pachislot 

and pachinko machines

GINZA Co., Ltd. ¥10 million 49.0%* Development, production, and sales of pachislot and pachinko machines

SEGA LOGISTICS SERVICE LTD. ¥200 million 100.0%* Operations for maintenance services, transportation, and storage

SEGA Amusements U.S.A., Inc. $4 million  100.0%* Importing, production, and sales of amusement machines

SEGA Amusements Europe Ltd. £22 million 100.0%* Importing, production, and sales of amusement machines

Sammy NetWorks Co., Ltd.  ¥2,286 million  56.3%  Planning and production of music-related content offered through mobile 

phones and the Internet

SEGA TOYS, LTD.  ¥1,713 million 52.6%  Planning, development, and sales of toys

TMS ENTERTAINMENT, LTD. ¥8,816 million 53.1%* Planning, production and sales of animated movies

SEGA of America, Inc. $42 million 100.0%* Development of game software 

SEGA Enterprises, Inc. (U.S.A.) $110 million 100.0%* Management of subsidiaries and management of game software development

SEGA Europe Ltd. £321 million 100.0%* Sales of game software

NISSHO INTER LIFE CO., LTD.  ¥5,018 million  51.4%  Planning, design, management, and construction of displays and 

commercial facilities

SEGA SAMMY ASSET MANAGEMENT INC. ¥100 million 100.0%  Prior surveying and consultation for real estate and loans

SEGA MUSIC NETWORKS CO., LTD.  ¥400 million  100.0%* Sales of karaoke machines

* Percentage of voting rights held includes rights of indirectly owned shares.



CAUTIONARY STATEMENT WITH RESPECT TO FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

Statements in this annual report regarding the plans, estimates, beliefs, management

strategies, perceptions, and other aspects of SEGA SAMMY HOLDINGS INC. (“the

Company”) and its SEGA SAMMY Group Companies (“the Group”), including SEGA

CORPORATION and Sammy Corporation, are forward-looking statements based on 

the information currently available to the Company. Forward-looking statements

include, but are not limited to, those statements using words such as “believe,”

“expect,” “plans,” “strategy,” “prospects,” “forecast,” “estimate,” “project,” “anticipate,”

“aim,” “may,” and “might,” and words of similar meaning in connection with a

discussion of future operations, financial performance, events or conditions. From time

to time, oral or written forward-looking statements may also be included in other

materials released to the public. These statements are based on management’s

assumptions and beliefs in light of the information currently available to management. 

The Company cautions you that a number of important risks and uncertainties 

could cause actual results to differ materially from those discussed in the forward-

looking statements, and therefore you should not place undue reliance on them. 

You also should not assume that the Company has any obligation to update or revise

any forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new information, future events,

or otherwise. The Company disclaims any such obligation.

Actual results may vary significantly from the Company’s forecasts due to various

factors. Factors that could influence actual results include, but are not limited to,

economic conditions, especially trends in consumer spending, as well as currency

exchange rate fluctuations, changes in laws and government systems, pressure from

competitors’ pricing and product strategies, declines in the marketability of the

Group’s existing and new products, disruptions to production, violations of the

Group’s intellectual property rights, rapid advances in technology, and unfavorable

verdicts in major litigation.

[This annual report includes “forward-looking statements” within the meaning 

of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and Section 21E of the

Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.]



Have your wishes
come true.

“What wouldst thou with me? I am the Slave of the Ring, and will obey thee in all things.”
The innovation of the new pachislot game.

Innovation always comes from Sammy. The ideas we’ve come up with ever since the company 

was founded are now entering a new stage. Armed with fresh ideas and development capacity, 

the energy possessed by each and every one of us is going to serve as the engine that powers 

our dreams and enables us to undertake new challenges.

Printed in Japan

© Sammy
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Shiodome Sumitomo Building, 1-9-2 Higashi Shimbashi,
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